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Our Vision

To consistently maintain the Company’s leading
status of producing high quality products being first
preference of our customers. Also to maintain the
standards of performance excellence with long term
plans of expansion and diversification.




er operating
nalism.

ults through increased
ximum benefit to the Company

- _. equal opportunity employer taking utmost
~care of the employees for their career progression
with better reward and recagnition of their abilities




Our Core Values

e An Organization with well disciplined and « An excellent image and repute amongst

professionally managed operational and corporate sector of the country and
administrative functions worldwide recognition

e Pioneering status in Polyester Fiber
manufacturing

e High importance to stakeholders with
historical background of regular dividend

e High quality manufacturing standards payouts to shareholders when Company
in profits

e Our products enjoy first preference of
downstream users

e Performance excellence in all areas of
operations

e Integrity in all our dealings based on
commitments

e \Very sound internal controls and highly
disciplined financial management




Company Profile

RUPALI POLYESTER LIMITED was incorporated at
Karachi in May 1980 as a Public Limited Company and
is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (formerly
Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad Stock Exchanges). It
owns and operates composite facilities to manufacture
Polyester Staple Fiber and Polyester Filament Yarn. It
produces quality products by using latest technology
and best quality of raw materials. The Company has
the privilege of being one of the pioneers in Pakistan
for manufacture of Fiber of highest quality.
Since its inception, t pany has been growing

steadily through expan and diversified operations.

The assets of the Campany have increased to
Rs.11,524 million from |the initial capital outlay of
Rs.150 million.

The Company has a Polymerization Unit with a
capacity of 105 metric tons per day, Polyester
Filament Yarn capacity of 30 metric tons per day and
a Polyester Staple Fiber capacity of 65 metric tons
per day. The Company has put up an additional POY
line with a capacity of 28 M. Tons per day at a cost of
around Rs.162 million. The various products of Rupali
are in fact import substitution as these were previously
imported from Japan, Indonesia, Taiwan and Korea.
Now the Company is importing the basic raw materials
only and through value addition is producing the
highest quality products locally.

Since inception, the philosophy of the Company’s
management is to grow on the strength of quality and
reliability. To achieve this objective, it is maintaining
a well equipped Research & Development Centre for
standard maintenance, innovative improvements in
its products and achieving economies in production
techniques without compromising on standard and
quality of products. Products and services offered by
the Company are acknowledged by the customers
as quality and reliable products and are the first
preference of customers.

The Company gives high priority to customers’
satisfaction, tries to maintain uninterrupted supply
of its products and provides after sales services,
technical support for trouble shooting.

LILLAH, the Company enjoys high
tation in the business community,
ifutions and customers. It is also
tors to the national exchequer.
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Financial Highlights

Particulars UOM 2021 2020 2019
Profit and Loss Account

Sales - Net Rs. in thousand 7,554,429 5,914,249 9,053,741
Cost of sales Rs. in thousand 6,710,396 5,520,731 8,562,629
Gross Profit Rs. in thousand 844,033 393,518 491,112
Operating profit Rs. in thousand 604,317 341,768 342,664
Profit before tax Rs. in thousand 546,036 108,801 174,302
Profit after tax Rs. in thousand 292,065 33,510 54,975
Income tax - current Rs. in thousand 113,317 88,714 95,670
- prior years Rs. in thousand 537 453 574
- deferred Rs. in thousand 140,117 (13,876) 23,083
Dividend

Cash dividend Rs. in thousand 170,343 - 34,069
Cash dividend rate Percentage 50 - 10

Balance Sheet

Share capital Rs. in thousand 340,685 340,685 340,685
Reserves Rs. in thousand 2,796,622 2,504,500 2,078,613
Shareholders equity Rs. in thousand 3,137,307 2,845,185 2,419,298
No. of ordinary shares Numbers 34,068,514 34,068,514 34,068,514
Non-Current liabilities Rs. in thousand 181,349 263,369 539,687
Current liabilities Rs. in thousand 3,183,831 3,797,067 3,055,610
Property, Plant and Equipment Rs. in thousand 3,089,935 3,082,353 3,295,511
Capital work-in-progress Rs. in thousand 147,706 10,402 64,020
Long term investments/loans/deposits Rs. in thousand 4,281 4,281 4,396
Current assets Rs. in thousand 2,805,337 3,110,413 2,252,188
Net current assets Rs. in thousand (378,494) (686,544) (803,422)
Total liabilities Rs. in thousand 6,502,487 6,905,621 6,014,595
Total Assets Rs. in thousand 6,502,487 6,905,621 6,014,595

Ratio Analysis

Gross profit Percentage 11.17 6.65 5.42
Net profit Percentage 3.87 0.57 0.61
Inventory turnover Times 8 7 10
Cash dividend per share Rupees 5 - 1
Earnings persshare - basic and diluted Rupees 8.57 0.98 1.61
Debt : equity ratio 0:100 4:96 4:96
Break-up value per share Rupees 92.09 83.51 71.01
Market value per share at the end of the year Rupees 34.00 13.20 27.55

Production volume

Production capacity M. Tons 22,100 22,100 22,100
Production achieved M. Tons 37,579 26,493 38,495
Capacity utilization Percentage 170 120 174

Employees Numbers 1,389 1,344 1,468




Annual Report 2022 9

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
6,044,111 5,025,401 4,890,041 4,841,940 5,952,659
5,680,917 4,887,698 4,969,175 4,982,459 6,219,222
363,194 137,703 (79,134) (140,519) (266,563)
234,689 (9,384) (135,807) (140,519) (361,421)
115,822 (123,064) (270,919) (401,098) (479,858)
64,553 (120,083) (333,478) (384,447) (403,284)
60,479 43,937 48,900 - -
266 (35,369) - - (30,459)
(9,477) (11,549) 13,659 (16,651) (46,115)
34,069 - - - -

10 - - - :
340,685 340,685 340,685 340,685 340,685
2,060,942 1,996,389 1,735,615 1,735,615 1,735,615
2,401,627 2,337,074 1,032,799 1,366,277 1,462,789
34,068,514 34,068,514 34,068,514 34,068,514 34,068,514
554,584 592,176 649,133 658,917 516,553
2,939,533 2,799,721 2,704,858 2,263,206 2,075,711
3,201,449 2,971,353 1,637,969 1,729,858 1,630,402
234,019 7,972 32,286 17,945 98,324
4,396 4,396 4,361 4,361 4,361
2,252,399 2,353,222 2,344,460 2,229,181 2,420,290
(687,134) (446,499) (360,398) (34,025) 344,579
5,895,744 5,728,971 4,386,790 4,288,400 4,055,053
5,895,744 5,728,971 4,386,790 4,288,400 4,055,053
6.01 2.74 (1.62) (2.90) (4.47)

1.07 (2.39) (6.82) (7.94) (6.77)

7 8 8 6 7

1 - - - -

1.89 (3.52) (9.79) (11.28) (11.84)
6:94 7:93 19 : 81 17:83 9:91
70.49 68.60 30.32 40.03 42.94
29.50 19.25 8.98 12.00 17.10
22,100 22,100 22,100 22,100 22,100
31,578 31,181 31,951 26,859 28,491
143 141 145 121 129

1,323 1,230 1,198 1,251 968
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Graphical Presentation
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Chairman’s Rewew

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased
to present to you the Annual Report and Financial
Statements of Rupali Polyester Limited for the year
ended 30 June 2022. The Company maintained its
strong performance during the year despite many
challenges including economic and political instability
in the country especially throughout Q4 of FY 2021-22.
The uncertain situation has been further aggravated
by the devastating floods in the country. As you
are aware, other unprecedented challenges due to
COVID-19 are not over. The Company has since been
growing steadily, expanding its operational capabilities
and enhancing its shareholders’ value. | announce
with great pleasure that Rupali Polyester Limited has
maintained its operational performance in current year.
In FY 2021-22, the Company’s net turnover showed
a growth of 49% to PKR 11,229.26 million and 48%
profit before taxation to PKR 865.73 million compared
to last year. The Company’s financial results have
been presented in greater detail in the Report of the
Directors. The Company is playing an important role
in country’s economic prosperity, through creating of
job opportunities, performance of its Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) and good corporate governance.
The Company adheres to sound standards of employee
health, safety, environment and security. Our team of
professionals is well-versed with the market dynamics
and strives for maintaining the momentum of growth.
Rupali Polyester Limited functions in the best corporate
governance regime with strong internal operational
and financial controls. Our Board Members contribute
their professional acumen and provide guidance and
oversight in reviewing and approving the Company
policies for which | place on record my special thanks
to them. Their guidance is instrumental in achieving
the Company’s goals.

The Board’s support and guidance was available to
the Company in the key policy matters as under:

. The Company has well thought out vision,
mission and values. The vision and mission
statements were revisited.

2. Annual targets were set for the Management in
key performance areas.

3. The Board provided directions and oversight to
the Company’s business activities.

4. The Board put in place transparent and robust
system of governance under applicable laws and
more specifically under the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019.

5. The Board reviewed, discussed and approved
business strategy, plan, budgets and financial
statements and other reports including internal
audit reports. It received clear agendas and
supporting written material in sufficient time prior
to board and committee meetings.

6. The Board members offered the diversity and
right mix of independent and non-executive
directors including female director in compliance
with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019.

Furthermore, on behalf of the Board, | would like
to express my sincere gratitude to the Company’s
shareholders for their continued support and appreciate
the commitment and valuable services rendered by
the employees of the Company in such trying times.
| also express my thanks to the Government for
favorable industry-related policies and to our Banks
for their confidence in the Company’s management

A

Shehzad Feerasta
Chairman

Lahore: 09 September 2022

Events commemoration -

Iftar / Dinner to Employees
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DireC’[OI’S’ Repor’[ to the Shareholders

With immense please, on behalf of the Board of
Directors, we welcome you to the forty-second
annual general meeting of the company and present
its’ annual audited financial results along with
auditors’ report thereon for the financial year ended
June 30, 2022. Key financial highlights of the annual
results of the company are presented below:

Key Financial Results
Rupees in thousand

Profit before taxation 865,731
Taxation 4,639
Profit after taxation 861,092

Rupees
Earnings per share — basic and diluted 25.27

Dividend

Board of Directors of the company has recommended
for your approval, a final dividend of 50 % (Rs. 5.00
per share of Rs.10 each), subject to tax and zakat
deduction (where applicable), for the year ended
June 30, 2022.

Overview

We are pleased to inform the valued shareholders
that your company, for the first time in its’ history, has
achieved the benchmark of Rs. 10 billion and earned
more than Rs. 11 billion in sales revenue during the
financial year 2021-22.

Despite facing multiple challenges in the fourth quarter
of the financial year due to political and economic
turmoil in the country, revenue and operating profits
showed sizable growth as compared to last year,
creating sustainable value for shareholders.

The company’s business grew rapidly in the first three
quarters of the financial year 2021-22 due to favorable
business environment in the country. However, in
the last quarter of the financial year, the economy
witnessed fast devaluation of Pakistan Rupee,
inflationary pressures and energy supply crisis. As a
result, the company’s profits could not maintain the
momentum of growth.

After the breakout of Russian-Ukrainian war in
February 2022, global financial and commodity
markets felt the repercussions. The world economies
experienced slowdown and high inflation resulting in

supply and demand imbalances with price pressures
on several materials and products.

Sales
‘ (Rs. In Million)

|
2022

2021

2020

2019

2018

2017

0 2,000 4,000 6,000 8,000 10,000 12,000

The country is facing severe economic challenges
and uncertainties. The economy is on the verge
of credit risk default due to adverse balance of
payments. Dollar supply is limited, putting pressure
on PKR-USD exchange rate, and increasing the cost
of essential import items including materials used in
our industry. Furthermore, continuous gas supply to
the industrial units for their energy needs has been
interrupted. These two factors along with liquidity
crunch are causing difficulties in continuing seamless
manufacturing operations.

Domestic Polyester Industry

Since the dumping from China, Malaysia, and Vietnam
into Pakistan began, many domestic industrial units
producing Polyester Filament Yarn (PFY), utilized in
weaving, knitting and hosiery industries, and Polyester
Staple Fiber (PSF), consumed by spinning industry,
have curtailed their manufacturing operations. These
units need government protection through imposition
of anti-dumping, regulatory and additional custom
duties in order to curb the dumped imports of PFY and
PSF. This will also encourage the local investors to
expand capacity and set up new projects, providing
employment to the local population and restricting the
depletion of foreign reserves.

The National Tariff Commission imposed anti-dumping
duties (ADDs) on the import of PSF and PFY from
China in 2015 and 2017 respectively based on their
findings that dumping in these products was
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indeed occurring which was leading to huge losses for
local manufacturers. ADD on the import of PSF was
reviewed and maintained by NTC in 2021; whereas
NTC has issued the notice for initiating the sunset
review proceedings to assess the continuation of
ADD on the import of PFY. We hereby express our
gratitude for the Commission’s decision to begin the
Sunset Review proceedings in this case, as there is
substantial evidence to show that the sources of the
dumping of “PFY” are continuing to dump it or are
doing so again.

However, at the same time, we have noticed with alarm
and dismay that the Commission has left Fully Drawn
Yarn (“FDY”) out of the investigation of products under
the Sunset Review processes. With due respect, we
request that the Commission reassess its decision and
include FDY as one of the products being evaluated
during the Sunset Review process.

At present, there is also no regulatory duty (RD) on the
import of PFY and PSF.

Elimination and reduction in regulatory and additional
custom duties on the import of PFY and PSF and
leaving FDY out of sunset review proceedings has
made it difficult for the domestic manufacturers to
compete with the imported PFY and PSF coming at
the dumped rates

PFY and PSF Market Conditions

The anti-dumping duties imposed by the National
Tariff Commission on the dumped imports of Polyester
Filament Yarn (“PFY”) from China and Malaysia vide
notification dated August 26, 2017 have been helpful
in providing protection to the domestic industry from
the dumped imports of PFY. Although, full benefits
of the anti-dumping duties imposed on the dumped
imports of PFY could not be realized as anti-dumping
duties remained ineffective for a considerable period
of time due to stays granted by the High Courts to
the importers at various times in the last five years.
Despite the fact that the antidumping duties remained
inoperative for a considerable period of time in the last
five years, the anti-dumping duties imposed on the
dumped imports of PFY have nevertheless provided
some breather to the domestic industry from

the dumped imports for whatever short time they
remained effective.

Anti-dumping duties imposed on the import of PSF
provided relief to the domestic PSF manufacturers.
In the last three years, the average market share of
the domestic industry has significantly increased
as compared to the Period of Injury for dumping.
However, the industry could not take the full benefit
as foreign exporters continued to export/dump PSF to
Pakistan albeit at reduced levels.

It is pertinent to mention that in the recent past, in
addition to China, Chinese Taipei, Thailand and
Indonesia have also started to dump PSF into
Pakistan. These countries re-emerged as dumping
sources following the termination of anti-dumping
duties in 2014, which has now been imposed again.

This illustrates that once the anti-dumping duties are
terminated, dumping reoccurs from previously dumped
sources, mainly for the reason that the dumped
sources want to offload their high exportable surplus,
causing material injury to the domestic industry.

Therefore, it is critical to maintain the anti-dumping
duties on the dumped products, otherwise the surge
in dumped imports will once again push the industry
back towards its pre-ADD period.

Circumvention of Anti-Dumping Duty on PFY —
Failure to collect government revenue and protect
domestic PFY industry from dumping
Importers/traders of polyester filament yarn have
flagrantly avoided anti-dumping duties (ADDs)
totaling billions of Pakistani rupees that have not been
collected from them during the last five years, despite
the dismissal of their petitions by the High Courts. As
a result, Government income has been lost and the
indigenous polyester filament yarn sector has been
severely harmed.

The importers of PFY have made it a routine practice
to obtain stay orders from various courts without
disclosing all the facts regarding the imposition of anti-
dumping duties (ADDs) on imported PFY since the
imposition of ADDs on PFY in 2017. As a result,



for the past five years, they have been able to clear
their yearly imports without providing any securities or,
ultimately, paying ADDs.

The National Tariff Commission (NTC) is primarily
responsible for ensuring that local producers of
polyester filament yarn are protected from dumping
and collecting the notified anti-dumping duty or
the security for such payment in the event of stay
orders during the customs clearance of imported
consignments. The NTC must keep up its efforts to
safeguard the domestic industry from dumping.

RLNG/Gas Supply Crisis for
Value-Chain

The Pakistan textile industry and its value chain have
diversified energy sources to fulfil its requirements
like receiving electricity from national grid and/or
generating own captive power through furnace oil,
coal and gas/RLNG. Majority of the textile sector and
its value chain are operating primarily on gas/RLNG
based Captive Power Plants to compensate for the
unstable electricity supply from the national grid.

Export-Oriented
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Stable supply of electricity from national grid and
utilization of gas/RLNG for captive power generation
are the cheapest source of power for export-oriented
value chains as their rates are at par with Regionally
Competitive Energy Tariffs (RCET). On the other
hand, prices of furnace oil and coal have escalated
significantly since last year because of rising global
crude oil and coal prices. Hence, it is not feasible
for the textile industry and its value chain to produce
captive power through furnace oil or coal.

Therefore, continuous supply of electricity and RLNG/
Gas is the most important and crucial support for an
export-oriented value chain, but currently this support
has been disrupted.

The industrial sector in Punjab has been dealing with
a severe gas/RLNG shortage since the winter of 2021.

One of the main industries in the country that generates
significant amounts of foreign exchange is the textile
industry, which depends on the seamless operation of
the complete value chain for exports. The supply of
gas/RLNG to the Punjab textile industry and its value-
chain was either completely stopped or distributed
at low-pressure or curtailed by roughly 50% from the
sanctioned load. Many units including ours have had to
operate at much lower capacities, which compromised
total output and resulted in enormous losses.

To preserve export-led economic growth, it is
necessary to promote export-oriented value chains;
this will benefit the country as a whole in the long
run. The current energy situation, which is incredibly
unpredictable, poses a significant challenge for
companies in Pakistan. The limited supply of gas
and RLNG, along with the high cost of captive power
production, will be disastrous for business and industry.
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PFY as Import Substitution

Since the last many years, we have been stating in
our reports to shareholders that the synthetic textile
industry, based on polyester filament yarn, has to be
developed and protected in order to replace imports
and meet the clothing demands of Pakistan’s 220
million people. To achieve this, the present import
duties should be kept in place, and a 5% Regulatory
Duty should be reinstated on all 5 HS Codes for PFY
(i.e. 5402.3300, 5402.4600, 5402.4700, 5402.5200,
5402.6200).

PYMA claims that the local PFY sector does not
produce specialty yarns. This is completely untrue
and amounts to underestimating the potential of home
industry. The NTC’s analysis confirmed the domestic
sector’s production records and state of manufacturing
facilities, demonstrating that the local PFY industry
is capable of producing all sorts and variations of
specialized PFY, including colored yarns.

With expansion plans of US$125 million by the local
PFY manufacturers to recapture its share of domestic
consumption to over 80% in 2027, this industry needs
support by way of maintaining consistent import tariffs
and regulatory duties at least for the next five years.
This would help the local PFY industry maintain its
growing pace and reduce the import bill of PFY imports

Credit Mobilization

During the financial year under review, your Company
renewed working capital facilities (both fund based and
non-fund based limits) and completed documentation
formalities of eight banks including Meezan Bank
Limited and The Bank of Punjab.

The cost of the Company’s short-term borrowings
depends upon fluctuations in KIBOR, which exposes
the cash flows to interest rate risk. With upward
changes in KIBOR rates, the mark-up rates on bank
borrowings have increased since last year. However,
due to improved cash flows and less utilization of
bank finances, the Company’s financial charges have
decreased substantially in FY 2021-22.

Taxation

Through Finance Act 2022, the government has
imposed ten percent super tax applicable from the
tax year 2022 that means a retrospective impact on
Companies’ cash flow. This willdampen the Company’s
hard-earned profits and pose huge financial burden on
the production units.

OEKO-TEX® Certification

Imported raw materials, advanced production
equipment, and professional and technical talents
contribute to produce high quality products. Our
products have passed the human-ecological
requirements for OEKO-TEX® STANDARD 100 and
we have received the renewed certification.

Raw Material Prices

During the financial year 2021-22, PTA prices
increased continuously whereas MEG prices showed
upward and downward trend. In July 2021, PTA price
was US$ 735 per M. Ton and in June 2022, the price
was US$ 1,120 per M. Ton showing a sharp increase
of 52%. On the contrary, MEG price in July 2021 was
US$650 per M. Ton and in June 2022, the price was
US$ 645 per M. Ton. Average prices per M. Ton of PTA
and MEG during the financial year 2021-22 remained
at US$ 875 and US$ 705 respectively as compared to
US$ 580 and US$ 568 respectively in financial year
2020-21.

Furthermore, the prices of raw materials and spare
parts remained volatile from LC opening to landing
of materials at plant premises due to un-predictable
exchange rate fluctuations. The exchange rate
remained exorbitantly high especially during the period
from January to June 2022. To quote some cases as
examples, an LC for import of MEG was opened in
March 2022 at exchange rate of Rs.182.10 and at
retirement, the exchange rate went to Rs.209.00.
Another LC for import of MEG was opened in May 2022
at exchange rate of Rs.184.85 and at the time of LC
retirement, the exchange rate jumped to Rs.204.70.
Similarly, for procurement of PTA, the exchange rate
fluctuations resulted in excessive price increase to the
tune of 5 - 10% in each LC.



Sales Revenue and Profits

Sales revenue of the Company for FY 2021-22 posted
a growth of 48% i.e., Rs. 3.63 billion — from Rs. 7.55
billion to Rs. 11.23 billion owing to positive variation
in sale prices and our marketing campaign. The
Company, for the first time in its history, crossed the
Rs. 10 billion benchmark.

Due to competition from low quality dumped PFY
available in the market during Q3 and Q4 of FY
2021-22, because of anti-dumping duty reductions
since January 2022, and political and economic
uncertainties in the last quarter of the FY, our sales
volumes were affected adversely.

Gross profit increased to Rs. 1,193.44 million from
Rs. 844.03 million in FY 2020-21. Finance cost
decreased significantly to Rs. 72.21 million from
Rs. 139.09 million mainly because of lesser bank
borrowings as compared to last year. Profit before tax
amounted to Rs. 865.73 million against Rs. 546.04
million in FY 2020-21. Profit after tax amounted to
Rs. 861.09 million against Rs. 292.07 million (restated)
in FY 2020-21.

Future Outlook

The COVID-19 epidemic was eventually brought
under control through concerted international efforts,
and the globe is now recuperating from its catastrophic
impacts. But the war between Russia and Ukraine has
increased economic development risks and raised
serious doubts about the future of the global economy.
Commodity prices are rising, trade and supply
networks are being disrupted, corporate confidence is
declining, and investor concern is rising. As a result
of the war, the global economic growth is expected to
suffer noticeable slowdown in 2022 and 2023.
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The negative economic consequences of the war in
Ukraine are spreading across the world and Pakistan
is also among the vulnerable countries. The risk
for Pakistan’s economy has been elevated by high
international commodity and oil prices, significant
pressure on external trade, and squeeze in fiscal
space.

Political instability has caused a huge increase in
economic uncertainty across the country. Uncertainty
affects the economy on a personal, business,
and governmental levels. Political stability may be
maximized by making clear policy announcements to
gain the confidence of both local and foreign investors
and the business sector.

Your Company plans to boost both its POY and DTY
production capabilities by introducing new machines
with the latest technology in light of the rising demand
for PSF and PFY on the local market as well as their
requirement as feedstock in textile export. Stable
and long-term economic policies are crucial for the
protection of this industry for any expansion and
capital investment, and we hope the government will
acknowledge its contribution to both employment and
the overall GDP.

To reduce the country’s significant foreign exchange
expenditure on the purchase of PFY at dumped rates,
the PFY industry should be expanded as a significant
source of import substitution. In order to increase
capacity to a point where local manufacturers could
satisfy more than 80% of the local demand, enabling
circumstances, such as protection from anti-dumping
duties on a glut of PFY dumping, policy measures
against Pak rupee depreciation, and energy supply at
discounted rates, will be helpful.

Additionally, in order to take advantage of cost savings
brought on by improved operational efficiency, your
company has also started a bold BMR plan where it will
be replacing some of its outdated auxiliary equipment
over the course of the next twelve months.

Risk Management
Due to sectoral considerations, the Company is
vulnerable to inherent risks. The risks that a company
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is prepared to take at the strategic and operational
levels, as well as its capability to manage them,
are crucial in determining its potential to generate
sustainable value. The goal of the Company’s risk
management strategy is to make sure that these risks
are promptly identified and dealt with.

<]
"

The overall charge for monitoring the risk management
procedure rests with the Board of Directors. It ensures
that choices are consistent with the Company’s
strategy and risk tolerance. The Board is regularly
updated on the significant operational and financial
risks facing the Company.

The Chief Executive Officer and senior management,
who are in charge of the day-to-day risk management
operations, conduct periodic reviews of all risk areas
as part of the risk management process.

The Board encourages the Management to develop a
strong methodology to predict the possible effects of
severe events on the Company’s profitability, balance
sheet, capital, and liquidity. This will help to further
enhance the entire risk management framework.

The Board looks after the Company’s risk management
process and controls, as well as reviews the Company’s
risk appetite and strategy with regard to key risks,
such as credit risk, liquidity and funding risk, market
risk, product risk, and reputational risk, as well as the
standards, policies, and procedures for observing and
minimizing such risks.

In compliance with the 2019 Listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governance) Regulations, the Company
has a Risk Management Policy. It provides several
tiers of accountability and supervision inside the
Company and assigns specific managers control over
each major risk.

The Board is custodian of the organization’s entire risk
management procedure. Business units and corporate
functions address risks in an institutionalized manner
that is in line with the company’s goals. Our internal
audit also plays its role actively. Cross-functional
engagement and communication across company
divisions are used to manage the business risk.
The Senior Management extensively discusses the
risk assessment findings in order to determine what
preventive actions are required.

Board of Directors
Current members on the Board of Directors were
elected on 27 October 2021. The present composition
is in conformity with the provisions of the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019.

The Board determines the appropriate characteristics,
skills and experience for the Board as a whole and
its individual members with the objective of having
a Board with diverse backgrounds and experience
in business, government, education and public
service. Characteristics expected of all Directors
include independence, integrity, high personal and
professional ethics, sound business judgment, ability
to participate constructively in deliberations and
willingness to exercise authority in a collective manner.

The present remuneration policy of Non-Executive
Directors including Independent Directors shall be
reviewed and determined by the Board.

Remuneration of Directors:
Following are the aggregate amounts of salary / fee and
other perquisites of the present Board for FY-2021-22:
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Directors’ Category Number | Aggregate Amount

of Salary and Fee

Other Perquisites

Chief Executive
Officer is drawing no
salary since his first

Executive Directors: One Nil
Chief Executive
Officer (Mr. Nooruddin

Feerasta) appointment except
Company car.

Independent Directors Two Nil Nil

Non-Executive Directors | Five Nil Nil

The Board periodically reviews the remuneration
policy and a well-defined remuneration policy is in
place.

Auditors

M/s. RSM Avais Hyder Liaguat Nauman, Chartered
Accountants, were appointed on 14 January
2022 in place of M/s. Igbal Yasir & Co. Chartered
Accountants who have resigned on 14 January
2022, stating the reason that due to their pre-
occupation in other assignments and were not
in a position to devote their time to the affairs of
Rupali Polyester Limited. M/s. RSM Avais Hyder
Liaguat Nauman, Chartered Accountants, retire and
being eligible offer themselves for re-appointment.

The Board has received recommendations from its
Audit Committee for re-appointment of M/s. RSM,
Avais Hyder Liaquat Nauman, Chartered Accountants
as Auditors of the Company for the year 2022-23.

Pattern of Shareholding
A statement showing the pattern of shareholding in the
Company as at 30 June 2022 appears on Page 87.

Other Disclosures

The Company’s performance has been sufficiently
elaborated in earlier parts of this Report of the
Directors, however, the specific disclosure of some
mandatory constituents are explained hereunder
in terms of the provisions of Section 227 of the
Companies Act, 2017, the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and Rule
Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited:

- During the financial year ended 30 June 2022,
following were the directors of the Company. Total
number of Directors: 08 (Seven male and one
female).

Names

Mr. Yaseen M. Sayani
Mr. Shahid Hameed

Mr. Muhammad Rashid Zahir
Mrs. Amyna Feerasta

Mr. Shehzad Feerasta

Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta

Mr. Abdul Hayee

Mr. Nooruddin Feerasta

Category

a) Independent Directors*®

b) Non-Executive Directors

c) Executive Director

Committees of the Board

Audit Committee

1. | Mr. Yaseen M. Sayani Chairman | (Independent Director)

2. | Mr. Muhammad Rashid Zahir | Member (Non-Executive Director)

3. | Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta Member (Non-Executive Director)

H.R and Remuneration Committee

1. | Mr. Shahid Hameed Chairman | (Independent Director)
2. | Mr. Nooruddin Feerasta Member (Chief Executive Officer)
3. | Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta Member (Non-Executive Director)

- The principal activities of the Company remained
consistent as manufacture and sale of synthetic
products. There were several developments during
the year under review including infrastructural
development and refurbishment of manufacturing
lines with the aim of cost cutting. Strategic review
was undertaken through monitoring of marketing
trend for monthly production plans to ensure
uninterrupted supply to meet the downstream
demands.

- There has been no change in nature of the
Company’s business.

- The external auditors have issued unqualified audit
report for the year ended 30 June 2022.

- Rupali Polyester Limited is not a foreign Company
and has no holding or subsidiary Company.

- Pattern of shareholding as on 30 June 2022 is
annexed.

- The earnings per share at the year end was
Rs. 25.27.

- The factors contributed towards main achievements
as well as the hindrances in growth during the
financial year 2021-22 have been elaborated in this
Report. Several measures were taken during the
year by the Company Management under guidance
of the Board of Directors to serve as economic tools
to make and keep the unit profitable. Pursuant to
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revival of businesses which faced recession due
to COVID-19, we are moving forward gradually
towards recovery with positive response from
downstream consumers. The top and bottom line
results during the year under review have shown
substantial growth despite COVID-19 variants
and unstable global and domestic economic
environment.

- The Company’s historical debt repayments and
servicing record is excellent and its Management
never allowed a situation to arise that may cause
default in repayment of debt.

- The Company’s internal controls are strong.
The Company has implemented sound systems
and controls in all spheres of operational and
commercial activities with check & balance for
regular monitoring. The purchase procedures
and SOPs are also sound and the checks and
controls are ensured at every stage. This system
is functioning smoothly and successfully with no
element of delay in meeting requirements as per the
delivery schedules. The SOPs of various activities
are regularly reviewed and bottlenecks removed for
improvements where required for smooth system
functioning. During COVID period, the Company
has and is fully adhering to the proper SOPs.

- There has occurred no material changes and
commitments materially affecting the financial
position of the Company between the end of the
financial year of the Company i.e. 30 June 2022
and the date of the report. Taxation also includes
new Super Tax imposed by the government and is
applicable on FY 2021-22. However, the results will
be under pressure in coming periods by virtue of
Pak Rupees devaluation against US Dollar.

- The Company’s business that suffered setback in
previous few years has now come out of the losses
and is moving steadily towards revival and growth.
The overall unfavorable market conditions include
dumping of low-cost PSF, PFY and cloth from the
regional countries. All favorable factors remaining
positive, it will still take more time to offset the
COVID impact, until the country’s political and
economic circumstances are settled in positive
directions.

- The Company’s business operations have no
adverse impact on environment. The outlets of
wastewater, emissions, gases etc. are kept under
the environmental protection parameters and
procedures and controls.

- The Company fulfills its Corporate Social
Responsibilities by way of donations to various
deserving educational institutions and hospitals.

- There have been no significant and material orders
passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and the
Company’s operations.

- Compliance wherever not made has been explained
as required under CCG 2019.

Related Party Transactions
In compliance with Section 208 and 209 of the
Companies Act, 2017 and Related Parties Regulations,
2018 the Company executes transactions with
following associated companies, related parties in its
ordinary course of business:

- Rupafil Limited
- Spintex Limited
- Soneri Bank Limited

The shareholders in its meeting held on 27 October
2021 had given approval through special resolution for
transactions to be consummated with related parties
during the year 2021-22. The Board of Directors has
duly approved/ratified the transactions made in FY
2021-22 with above related parties.

Disclosure Requirements as per Listing Regulations/
Code of Corporate Governance Regulations

Corporate Governance:

The Company is committed to maintain the highest
standards of Corporate Governance and adhere to
the Corporate Governance requirement set out by the
SECP. The Company has also implemented several
best governance practices. The report on Corporate
Governance under PSX Listing Regulations forms
an integral part of the Annual Report. The requisite
certificate from the auditors of the Company
confirming compliance with the conditions of the
Corporate Governance is attached to the Report on
Corporate Governance.

Good Corporate Governance has always been the
focal point of the Board of Directors of the Company.
We are happy to report that your Company by
the Grace of ALLAH meets the standard set in the
guidelines for good corporate governance and is in
compliance with the relevant Regulations. At Rupali



Polyester Limited, we ensure that we evolve and
follow the corporate governance guidelines and
best practices sincerely to not just boost long-term
shareholder value, but to also respect minority rights.
We consider it our inherent responsibility to disclose
timely and accurate information regarding our
financials and performance, as well as the leadership
and governance of the Company. In accordance with
the vision set by the Board, the Company aspires to
be the global Polyester industry benchmark for value
creation and corporate citizenship.

The Company expects to realize its Vision by taking
such actions as may be necessary in order to achieve
its goals of value creation, safety, environment and
people. The Auditors’ Certificate regarding compliance
of conditions of Corporate Governance are made part
of the Annual Report.

During the year, the Company took several initiatives
in various aspects of sustainability. At the strategic
level, the Company embarked on a scenario planning
exercise to envision the future, looking at economic,
regulatory and stakeholder scenarios in order to
develop our next vision and action plans. In order to
drive the various aspects of sustainability in a more
focused way, the Company put together consolidated
governance mechanisms with clear demarcation of
roles between the Board, its Committees and the
Management. During the year, the capital projects for
environment have progressed significantly. Following
specific statements are being given hereunder:

The Company has initiated steps of energy
conservation and continue taking measures to
improve energy efficiency. Our environment research
team in R&D has been working on projects to reduce
the environmental impact of our operations while
improving resource efficiency. We are happy to report
that the Company has made a lot of improvement as
a result of its efforts.

Human Resource Management adopts key decisions
not just with respect to Human Resource but
businesses as a whole. It focuses on improving the
way of life, work culture, employee engagement,
productivity, effectiveness and efficiency. During the
year, several employee centric policies were launched
to cater to the needs of the work force and also to
keep the Company up to date with external realities.

Policies like adoption leave, physical and emotional
well-being, and professional counseling services were
launched in the interest of the employees’ changing
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needs. The Company initiated multiple actions to
keep the workforce engaged. Actions are being
taken to increase professional diversity, providing
greater amenities for contractor workforce, improving
employee skills and enhancing employee productivity.
In addition, policies are being implemented to support
affirmative action through training and enabling
employment.

We further state that:

- The Company has maintained its books of account
as per statutory requirements.

- The Company’s financial statements fully present
state of affairs fairly, its results of operations, cash
flows and changes in equity.

- Appropriate accounting policies and applicable
International Accounting Standards and
International Financial Reporting Standards were
applied in preparation of financial statements,
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and
prudent judgment, and any departures there from
have been adequately disclosed and explained.

- There is no inconsistency in these policies and
no material departure from the best practices of
corporate governance is allowed.

- These accounts have been prepared on going
concern basis and the Management is satisfied
regarding going concern status of the Company.

- The system of internal controls of the Company
is significantly sound in design and has been
effectively implemented and monitored.

- Plant operations remained normal throughout the
year. However, the dumped imports from China
and Malaysia disturbed our sales targets, which put
adverse impact on our sales revenues. The reasons
for increase in revenues, cost of goods sold and
decrease in finance costs have been highlighted
and explained.

- There is no statutory payment because of taxes,
duties, levies and charges outstanding other than
those in normal business related transactions.

- Company is neither in default nor likely to default
any loans, short-term borrowings or any sort of debt
instruments.
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Investment of Provident Fund
The value of investment in Provident Fund Trust
Account inclusive of profit accrued:

As on 30 June 2022
(Unaudited)

As on 30 June 2021
(Audited)

(Rupees in ‘000)

23,451 23,845

Audit Committee Meetings Held and Attendance
by each Member

Total number of Audit Committee Meetings held
during the year under review: 5

Attendance by each Member:

1. Mr. Yaseen M. Sayani Chairman 5
2. Mr. Muhammad Rashid Zahir Member 5
3. Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta Member 5

H.R and Remuneration Committee Meetings and
Attendance by each member

Total number of HR and Remuneration Committee
Meetings held during the year under review: 4

Attendance by each Member:

1. Mr. Shahid Hameed Chairman 4
2. Mr. Nooruddin Feerasta Member 4
3. Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta Member 4

Board Meetings held and Attendance by each
Director

Total number of Board Meetings held during

the year under review: 6

Attendance by each Director:
1. Mr. Nooruddin Feerasta
(Chief Executive Officer) 6

2. Mr. Muhammad Rashid Zahir
(Non-Executive Director) 6

3. Mrs. Amyna Feerasta
(Non-Executive Director) 6

4. Mr. Yaseen M. Sayani
(Independent Director) 6

5. Mr. Sultan Ali Rajwany
(Independent Director) 2

6. Mr. Shehzad Feerasta
(Non-Executive Director) 6

7. Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta
(Non-Executive Director) 6

8. Mr. Shahid Hameed
(Independent Director) 4

9. Mr. Abdul Hayee
(Non-Executive Director) 6

Mr. Sultan Ali Rajwany (ex-Independent Director)
did not contest election, hence attended only two
meetings prior to the election of the Board of Directors.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Your Company attaches high priority to its social
responsibilities and is committed to the highest
standards of corporate behavior. The Company’s CSR
responsibilities are fulfilled through selective monetary
contributions in the areas of health care, education,
environmental protection, water and sanitation, child
welfare, infrastructure development and other welfare
activities subject to availability of surplus funds. Our
CSR activities include contributions to hospitals and
welfare programs engaged in assisting under-privileged
patients, students and children of various special needs.

Code of Conduct

As a part of continuous adherence to best practices
of corporate governance, Rupali Polyester Limited
believes in widely disseminating its values and ethics for
strict adherence by all employees, contractors, suppliers
and others associated with business of the Company.
Our commitment to encouraging ethical and responsible
practices is demonstrated by the fact that the Company
had a comprehensive Code of Conduct in place well
before the introduction of this requirement in 2002 and
since then have been reviewed and updated. The Code
of Conduct of the Company is reviewed periodically
and we ensure compliance at all levels. Furthermore,
upon joining the Company, all employees are required
to read and understand the Code of Conduct for strict
compliance, which demonstrates Company’s best
corporate governance in practice.

Succession Planning

At Rupali Polyester Limited, there is a proper succession
planning and is implemented evaluating the incumbents’
talent. The focus is on capability building by encouraging
internal lateral moves.

Individuals highlighted for succession are developed
through stretched assignments and involvement through
internal /external training, and on the job education.

Whistleblowing Policy

Rupali Polyester has a well-defined Whistleblowing
Policy. Any cases where the Code of Conduct has
been violated, and to help facilitate strict adherence to
it, employees have access to a whistleblowing protocol.
Through this program, any employee can confidentially
report suspected breach of ethics and Code of the



Company by way of anonymity. Any complaints if
received are thoroughly investigated to a logical end. The
Board Audit Committee as well as the Board oversees
this process.

Health, Safety and Environment

The Company is strongly committed towards all aspects
of maintaining a safe and healthy environment for our
business operations as well as affiliated organizations.

The Company fully recognizes safety as a key component
of operational excellence and gives vital importance to
the training of employees and contractors. We also try to
enhance safety awareness and actively incorporate best
practices for the industries overall operational set-up.

Our commitment to environment, health and safety
is manifested in our operational activities as no major
accident was reported in the year 2021.

There was no reportable occupational illness from our
employees or contracted work force in FY 2021-22.
Proper fumigation and treatment against viral spread is
regularly carried out at plant site and offices

Labor Management Relations

Like previous years, cordial relations were maintained
between the Management and the labor force. We
extend our appreciation for their dedication and hard
work demonstrated at every level for the progress and
growth of the Company.

Internal Financial Control Systems and their
Adequacy

Your Company has an Internal Control System
commensurate with the size scale and complexity of
its operations and well- documented procedures for
various processes, which are periodically reviewed
for changes warranted due to business needs. The
Internal Auditor continuously monitors the efficiency of
the internal controls/ compliance with the objective of
providing to Audit Committee and the Board of Directors
an independent objective and reasonable assurance of
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management control and governance processes. This
system of internal control facilitates effective compliance
of mandatory requirements under the Act and Listing
Regulations.
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To maintain its objectivity and independence the Internal
Auditor reports to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.
The Internal Auditor monitors and evaluates the
efficiency and adequacy of the internal control system
with reference to the Financial Statement. Based on the
report of internal auditor the Management undertakes
corrective actions in respective areas and thereby
strengthen the controls. Significant audit observations
and corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit
Committee. During the year under review, no reportable
material weakness in the operation was observed.
Regular audit and review processes ensure that such
systems are reinforced on an ongoing basis.

Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements for FY 2021-22 prepared as per
provisions of Companies Act, 2017 were approved and
authorized for their issuance by the Board of Directors on
09 September 2022.

Approval of the Directors’ Report and Compliance
Statement

The Board of Directors approved the Directors’ Report
and statement of compliance on September 9, 2022 and
authorized their issuance.

A Note of Gratitude

The Directors express their appreciation for the
cooperation provided by the Ministries of Finance,
Revenue and Economic Affairs, Industries and
Production, Communication, and Commerce and Textile.
We would also like to convey our gratitude to the Federal
Board of Revenue and Government of the Punjab for
their cooperation. We appreciate the patronage and
confidence placed in the Company by the Development
Financial Institutions and commercial banks. We are
thankful to our valued customers and expect growing
business relationships with them. To our stakeholders,
we are grateful for their faith and trust in the Company.
We place on record our appreciation of the contribution
made by employees at all levels. Our resilience to meet
challenges was made possible by their hard work,

solidarity, co-operation and support.

Zeeshan Feerasta
Director

On behalf of the Board

=

Nooruddin Feerasta
Chief Executive Officer

Lahore:
09 September 2022
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The company

RUPAL! POLYESTER LIMITED Chon
RUPALI HOUSE, 241-242 UPPER MALL SCHEME, ANAND ROAD OEKO-TEX®
54000 LAHORE, PAKISTAN CONFIDENTE IN TEXTILES 982,

20180K1181 AITEX '

is granted authorisation according to STANDARD 100 by OEKQ-TEX® to use
the STANDARD 100 by OEKO-TEX® mark, based on our test report boeipiiphoioreodll C1 -t 4 O
20220K2181 = e s =

for the following articles:

Raw polyester filament yarn.

The results of the inspection made according to STANDARD 100 by OEKO-TEX®, Annex 6, product class | have shown that the
above mentioned goods meet the human-ecological requirements of the STANDARD 100 by OEKG - TEX® presently established in
Annex 6 for baby articles.

The certified articles fulfil requirements of Annex XVII of REACH (incl. the use of azo colourants, nickel release, etc.), the American
requirement regarding total content of lead in children’s articles (CPSIA; with the exception of accessories made from glass) and
of the Chinese standard GB 18401:2010 (labelling requirements were not verified).

The holder of the certificate, who has issued a conformity declaration according to ISO 17050-1, is under an obligation to use the
STANDARD 100 by OEKO-TEX® mark only in conjunction with products that conform with the sample initially tested. The
conformity is verified by audits.

The certificate 20180K1181 is valid until 30.09.2023

!".\_
Alcoy (Alicante) Espana, 19.09.2022 (\"__"“““ i

L_J':&Qx‘}{%

— Silvia Devesa Valencia Isabel Soriano Sarri
Innovation Assistant Manager Chief of Innovation Area

OEKO-TEX® Association | Genferstrasse 23 | CH-8002 Zurich
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The company

RUPALI POLYESTER LIMITED
RUPALI HOUSE, 241-242 UPPER MALL SCHEME, ANAND ROAD OEKO-TEX®
54000 LAHORE, PAKISTAN CONFIDENCE IN TEXTILES

o

is granted authorisation according to STANDARD 100 by OEKO-TEX® to use CUELl PRI,
Tested for harmful substances E

the STANDARD 100 by OEKO-TEX® mark, based on our test report g .!55'. IE'
20220K2223 he A

for the following articles:

Raw polyester staple fibre.

The results of the inspection made according to STANDARD 100 by OEKO-TEX®, Annex 6, product class I have shown that the
above mentioned goods meet the human-ecological requirements of the STANDARD 100 by OEKO - TEX® presently established in
Annex 6 for baby articles.

The certified articles fulfil requirements of Annex XVIl of REACH (incl. the use of azo colourants, nickel release, etc.), the American
requirement regarding total content of lead in children’s articles (CPSIA; with the exception of accessories made from glass) and
of the Chinese standard GB 18401:2010 (labelling requirements were not verified).

The holder of the certificate, who has issued a conformity declaration according to ISO 17050-1, is under an obligation to use the
STANDARD 100 by OEKO-TEX® mark only in conjunction with products that conform with the sample initially tested. The
conformity is verified by audits.

The certificate 20220K2223 is valid until 30.09.2023

Alcoy (Alicante) Espaa, 19.09.2022

&3 L 'S L
S . | EY )
Yo /
. I Ly
Silvia D’eves‘“VaLfenbla “Isabel S Soriane Sarri6
~Innovation Assistant Manager Chie novation Area

OEKO-TEX® Association | Genferstrasse 23 | CH-8002 Zurich
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Notice of Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the Forty Second Annual
General Meeting of Rupali Polyester Limited (“the
Company”) will be held at Rupali House, 241-242
Upper Mall Scheme, Anand Road, Lahore on Friday,
21 October 2022 at 10:30 a.m. (through Zoom and
with compliance of quorum requirement,) to transact
the following business:

Ordinary Business:

1)  To confirm the minutes of Forty First Annual
General Meeting of the Company held on
27 October 2021.

2)  To receive, consider and adopt Annual Audited
Financial Statements of the Company together
with the Directors and Auditors Reports thereon
for the year ended 30 June 2022.

3) To approve payment of final cash dividend
@ 50% i.e. Rs.5.00 per share for the year
ended 30 June 2022 as recommended by the
Board of Directors in its 118th meeting held on
9 September 2022.

4)  To appoint Auditors of the Company and to
fix their remuneration. The retiring Auditors
M/s. RSM Avais Hyder Liaquat Nauman,
Chartered Accountants being eligible have
offered themselves for reappointment.

Special Business:

5) (a) To approve transactions conducted with
associated companies (related parties) for
the year ended 30 June 2022 by passing with
or without modification the following special
resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the following transactions
conducted with associated companies (related
parties) for the year ended 30 June 2022 be and
are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed:

Name Description of Amount in Rs. ‘000
Transaction Purchase | Sale | Others
Rupafil Limited | Furchase/sale ofgoods | 4505744 | 4753
and services
Rupali Nylon (Pvt.) | Purchase of goods and
o . 5,511
Limited. services
Spintex Limited Purchase/sale of goods 43,305 14 -
Soneri Bank Limited | Profit on Bank deposits - 7,763
ALNU Trust
(maior shareholder) Repayment of loan 197,000

(b) To authorize Chief Executive Officer of the
Company to approve transactions with Related

Parties for the year ending 30 June 2023 by
passing the following special resolution with or
without modification:

“RESOLVED THAT the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company be and is hereby authorized to
approve the transactions to be conducted with
Related Parties on case to case basis during

the year ending 30 June 2023:

FURTHERRESOLVED THAT thesetransactions
shall be placed before the shareholders in
the next general meeting for their ratification/
approval.”

Other Business

6) To transact such other ordinary business as
may be placed before the meeting with the
permission of the Chair.

By order of the Board

Lahore: S. Ghulam Shabbir Gilani
9 September 2022 Company Secretary
Notes:

1)  Share Transfer Books
Share transfer books of the Company will remain
closed from 14 October 2022 to 21 October
2022 (both days inclusive). Transfers received
at the registered office or Share Registrar M/s.
THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited, Plot No. 32-C,
Jami Commercial Street 2, D.H.A. Phase VII,
Karachi-75500 before close of business on
13 October 2022 will be treated in time for the
purpose of above entitlement to the transferees.

2) Zoom Link

In line with the guidelines of the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, the
Company will convene this AGM through Zoom
link while ensuring compliance with the quorum
requirements and request to the Members to
consolidate their attendance and voting at the
AGM through proxies.

The special arrangement for attending the AGM
through electronic means will be as under:

a. AGM will be held through Zoom application.
Under the country’s environment and loss to
infrastructure consequential to devastating



floods, members who can conveniently
participate in person will be appreciated.

b. Shareholders/Proxyholders interested in
attending the AGM through Zoom are hereby
requested to get themselves registered with the
Company Secretary office by sending an e-mail
with subject: “Registration for AGM” at info@
rupaligroup.com at least 48 hours before the
AGM:

Name of CNIC Folio Number/ Cell Email
Shareholder Number CDC Account | Phone | Address
No. No.

3)

Members will be registered, after verification as
per the above requirement and will be provided
a Zoom link by the Company via email provided
by them.

The login facility will remain open from
10:00 a.m. till conclusion of the meeting.

The shareholders are also encouraged to send
their comments/suggestions, related to the
Agenda items of the Annual General Meeting
on the above mentioned email address or
WhatsApp/SMS on 0323-4123854 or 0300-
4799881 by 19 October 2022 before close of
business hours (5.00 pm).

Proxy Holders

A member entitled to attend and vote at this
meeting may appoint another member as his or
her proxy to attend and vote. Proxies in order to
be effective must be received at the registered
office of the Company not less than 48 hours
before the time of holding the meeting. Proxy
Form attached

CDC Account Holders

Accountholders/sub-accountholders holding
book entry securities of the Company in Central
Depository System (CDS) of Central Depository
Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) who
wish to attend the Annual General Meeting
are requested to please bring their original
Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or
original passport with a photocopy duly attested
by their bankers alongwith participant’s I.D.
number and their account number in CDS for
identification purposes.

4)

5)
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In case of corporate entity, the Board of
Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with
specimen signature of the nominee together
with the original proxy form duly filled in must be
received at the registered office of the Company
not less than 48 hours before the time of holding
the meeting. The nominees shall produce their
original CNIC or original passport at the time of
attending the meeting for identification purpose.

Submission of copy of CNIC (Mandatory)

In order to comply with the directives of Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
issued from time to time, the shareholders are
requested to kindly send photocopy of their
CNICs to us immediately at our address “Rupali
House, 241-242 Upper Mall Scheme, Anand
Road, Lahore-54000 or our Share Registrar
M/s. THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited, Plot No.
32-C, Jami Commercial Street 2, D.H.A. Phase
VI, Karachi-75500”. The shareholders who
have already provided CNIC to us need not re-
submit it unless the CNIC is expired. Corporate
shareholders are requested to provide their
National Tax Numbers (NTN). In case of non
submission of copy of CNIC the dividend may
be withheld.

Circulation of Audited Financial Statements
through email

Members are hereby informed that Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide
SRO No. 787(1)/2014 dated 8 September 2014
has allowed companies to circulate Audited
Financial Statements along with notice of
annual general meeting to their members
through email subject to compliance with the
conditions outlined in the said Notification. In
this regard a written notice may please be sent
to us as soon as possible at our following email
addresses and for convenience of the members,
a standard request form has also been placed
on the Company’s website.

Company Secretary: shabbir.gilani@rupaligroup.com
THK Associates: aa@thk.com.pk
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6)

7)

8)

9)

Rupali Polyester Limited

Transmission of Annual Financial Statements
through CD/DVD/USB

SECP through an SRO No0.470(1)/2016 dated
31 May 2016 has allowed companies to
circulate their annual balance sheet, profit and
loss account, auditors’ report and directors’
report (Annual Report) to the members through
CD/DVD/USB at their registered addresses. In
view of this the Company has sent its Annual
Report to the shareholders in the form of CD.
Any Member desiring the copy of Annual
Report in printed form may send request on
standard request form placed under the Investor
Information sections in the website www.
rupaligroup.com.

Bank Mandate with International Bank
Account Number (IBAN) for payment of
Cash dividend

Under the provisions of Section 242 of the
Companies Act, 2017, Securities & Exchange
Commission of Pakistan has directed all listed
companies to pay cash dividends only through
electronic mode directly into the bank accounts
of the shareholders. Therefore, please provide
us your Bank Mandate details including
International Bank Account Number (IBAN)
alongwith a copy of valid CNIC at the earliest, if
not already provided to:

1. yourrespective CDC Participant/ CDC Investor
Account Services (in case your shareholding
is in book entry form) or

2. our Share Registrar, M/s. THK Associates
(Pvt.) Limited, Plot No. 32-C, Jami Commercial
Street 2, D.H.A. Phase VII, Karachi-75500 (in
case your shareholding is in physical form).

Withholding tax on dividend income

The shareholders are hereby informed that
under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001, Income Tax will be deducted at source
@15% for person appearing in ATL and @30%
for person not appearing in ATL at the time of
processing dividend (determined as per “Active
Tax Payer List (ATL)” available on Federal
Board of Revenue’s website) from the dividend
amount.

Joint Account Holders

In case of joint account, each holder is to be
treated individually as either a filer or non-
filer and tax will be deducted on the basis
of shareholding of each joint holder as may
be notified by the shareholder, in writing as
follows, to our Share Registrar. In case no such

notification is received by us, equal deduction of
tax will be made where proportionate holding is
not available with us:

Folio/CDC | Total Shares Principal Joint Email Address
Shareholders shareholding | Shareholding
Number/ Shareholding | Name & CNIC | Shareholding
CDC proportion (No. No. proportion
Account No. of Shares)
10) Unclaimed dividend and shares

11)

Pursuant to Section 244 of the Act, any shares
issued or dividend declared by the Company,
which remain unclaimed or unpaid for a period
of three years from the date it became due and
payable shall rest with the Federal Government
after compliance of procedures prescribed under
the Act. In this respect, we had already initiated
the process and concerned shareholders were
advised vide our letter dated 28 December
2017 and subsequent notices, to claim their
unclaimed dividend/shares. However, only
few shareholders have claimed their pending
entitlements so far.

Shareholders are again advised to approach
the Company’s Share Registrar to claim their
pending dividend/shares at the earliest failing
which the Company shall proceed further in
terms of requirement of Section 244(2) (a) & (b)
of the Act.

Consent for the Facility of video-link
Members may participate in the meeting via
video-link facility. If the Company receives a
demand from members holding an aggregate
10% or more shareholding residing at a
geographical location outside Lahore to
participate in the meeting through video link at
least 7 days prior to the date of meeting, the
Company will arrange video link facility in that
city.

In this regard, Members who wish to participate
through video-link facility, should send a duly
signed request as per the following format to the
Registered Address of the Company.

l/'we of

being a member of Rupali Polyester Limited
holder of ordinary share(s) as
per Registered Folio / CDC Account No.
hereby opt for video link facility

at

Signature Member



12) Depositof Physical Shares into CDC Account
The SECP, through its letter No. CSD/ED/
Misc./2016-639-640 dated 26 March 2021, has
advised all listed companies to adhere to the
provision of Section 72 of the Companies Act,
2017 (the “Act), which requires all companies to
replace shares issued in physical form to book-
entry form within four years of the promulgation
of the Act.

In accordance with the requirement of Section
72 of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) every
existing company shall be required to replace
its physical shares with book-entry form in a
manner as may be specified and from the date
notified by the Commission, within a period not
exceeding four years from the commencement
of the Act. The shareholders having physical
shares may open CDC sub-account with any of
the broker or investor account directly with CDC
to place their physical shares into scrip-less
form.
13) Availability of Audited Financial Statements
on Company’s Website
The audited financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 30 June 2022
have been made available on the Company’s
website www.rupaligroup.com.
14) Requirement of Companies (Postal Ballot)
Regulations, 2018
Pursuant to Companies (Postal Ballot)
Regulations, 2018, for any other agenda
items subject to the requirements of Section
143 and 144 of the Companies Act, 2017,
members present in person, through Zoom/
Video link or by proxy, and having not less than
one-tenth of the total voting power can also
demand a poll and exercise their right of vote
through postal ballot, that is voting by post or
through any electronic mode, in accordance
with requirements and procedure contained
in the aforesaid Regulations. Shareholders
are requested to notify any change in their
addresses immediately.

Statement under Section 134 (3) of the
Companies Act, 2017

This statement sets out the material facts
concerning the special business to be transacted
at the Forty Second Annual General Meeting
of Rupali Polyester Limited to be held on
21 October 2022.
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Agenda Item No. 5 (a) — Transactions carried
out with associated companies (related parties)
during the year ended 30 June 2022 to be approved
by way of Special Resolution

The transactions carried out in normal course of
business with associated companies (related parties)
were being approved by the Board of Directors as
recommended by the Audit Committee on quarterly
basis pursuant to Section 208 of the Companies Act,
2017, Rule 15, Chapter IV of the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
and Rule 5.6.6(a) of the PSX Regulations.

However, the majority of Company Directors were
interested in these transactions due to their common
directorship and holding of shares in the group
companies, the quorum of directors could not be
formed for approval of these transactions pursuant
to Section 207 of the Companies Act, 2017 and,
therefore, these transactions have to be approved by
the shareholders in General Meeting.

Agenda Item No. 5 (b) — Authorization to Chief
Executive Officer for Related Party Transactions
to be carried out with associated companies
(related parties) during the year ending 30 June
2023 to be approved by way of Special Resolution
The Company shall be conducting Related Party
Transactions with associated companies (related
parties) during the year ending 30 June 2023 in the
normal course of business. The majority of Directors
shall be interested in these transactions due to
their common directorship and shareholding in the
associated companies. Therefore, these transactions
with associated companies (related parties) shall
have to be approved by the shareholders.

In order to ensure smooth supply during the year,
the shareholders may authorize the Chief Executive
Officer to approve transactions with associated
companies (related parties) on case to case basis
for the year ending 30 June 2023. The summary of
commercial reasons, nature and scope of Related
Party Transactions are explained in the proposed
resolution. However, these transactions shall be
placed before the shareholders in the next General
Meeting for their approval/ratification.

The Directors are interested in the resolution to the
extent of their common directorship and shareholding
in the associated companies
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Statement of Compliance

with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019

Name of Company - Rupali Polyester Limited
Year Ended - 30 June 2022

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are eight (8) as per the following:

a. Male: 7
b. Female: 1
2. The composition of board is as follows:
Category Names

Mr. Yaseen M. Sayani
a) Independent Directors*
Mr. Shahid Hameed

Mr. Muhammad Rashid Zahir

Mrs. Amyna Feerasta
b) Non-Executive Directors Mr. Shehzad Feerasta
Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta

Mr. Abdul Hayee

c) Executive Director Mr. Nooruddin Feerasta

* The fraction of one third is not rounded up as the total no of directors are limited, hence two independent
directors are significant and, in our view, serve the purposes of the regulation.

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this company;

4.  The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken
to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

5.  The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies
of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies
along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the company;

6.  Allthe powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken
by Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected
by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017
(the Act) and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of
the Board;

8.  The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance
with the Act and these Regulations;



9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.
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Following directors have completed their training, or are exempt from the training requirement;

Name Designation
Mr. Nooruddin Feerasta CEO/Executive Director
Mr. Muhammad Rashid Zahir Non Executive Director
Mr. Shehzad Feerasta Non Executive Director/ Chairman
Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta Non Executive Director
Mr. Yaseen M. Sayani Independent Director
Mr. Abdul Hayee Non Executive Director

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal
Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant
requirements of the Regulations;

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval
of the Board;

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee: b) HR and Remuneration Committee:

1. | Mr. Yaseen M. Sayani Chairman 1. | Mr. Shahid Hameed Chairman
2. | Mr. Muhammad Rashid Zahir Member 2. | Mr. Nooruddin Feerasta Member
3. | Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta Member 3. | Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta Member

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
committee for compliance;

The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per following:

a) Audit Committee, quarterly
b) HR and Remuneration Committee, quarterly

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function. The audit staff is considered suitably qualified
and experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the company;

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and
registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not
a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer,
chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the company;

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, the Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the
auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been
complied with;
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19. Explanation for non-compliance with a requirement, other than the Regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32,33 and 36
are stated below:

Formation of nomination committee and risk management committee is under consideration.

Reference to Para 9 above, remaining two directors will complete their training in due course, however,
they are conversant with their roles and responsibilities and policies and procedures of the Company

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Shehzad Feerasta Zeeshan Feerasta
Chairman Director

Lahore:09 September 2022



RSM

R5M Avais Hyder Liaguat Nauman
Chartered Accountants
Avais Chambers, VC-5

Sikander Malhi Road, Canal Park
Gulberg I, Lahore, Pakistan

T:+92(42) 358727313
F:e02(42) 35672734

lahore@rsmpakistan.ph
www.rsm.global/pakistan

REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN THE LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors (the
Board) of Rupali Polyester Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2022 in accordance
with the requirements of Regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the
Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to
highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited
primarily to inguiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the
Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board’'s statement on internal control
covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal control, the
Company's corporate governance procedures and risks,

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board for its review and approval, the
related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement
to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material
respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the
year ended June 30, 2022,

JM oppo Moman
RSM AVAIS R LIAQU NAUMAN
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

ENGAGEMENT PARTNER: Inam Ul Haque
Place: Lahore

Date: 09 SEP 012
UDIN: CR2022102260URETg6ny
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF RUPALI POLYESTER LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RSM

RSM Avais Hyder Liaquat Mauman
Chartered Accountants
Avais Chambers, 1/ C- 5

Sikander Malhi Road, Canal Park
Gulberg ll, Lahore, Pakistan

T:492(42)35872731-3
F:492(42) 3587 2734

lahore@rsmpakistan.pk
wwrw.rsm.global/pakistan

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Rupali Polyester Limited (the Company),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2022, and the statement of
profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state
that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the
notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the
manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's
affairs as at June 30, 2022 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1SAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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We have determined the matter described below as the Key Audit Matter:

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
maftter

Deferred taxation

Refer Note 7 and 26 to the financial

statements

Correction of error in respect of deferred
taxation was made during the year as fully
explained in Note 7.2 to the financial
statements.

Considering the significance of the matter, we
considered this area as Key Audit Matter.

Our audit procedures include the following:

- Obtained an understanding of the
Company’'s policy and procedure for
recognition of deferred taxation;

Obtained working of deferred taxation
for current and prior periods and
reperformed / rechecked calculations in
accordance with the requirements of
IAS-12 Income taxes;

- (Checked and wverified the unused tax
losses and tax credits from the income
tax returns of the relevant tax years and
other relevant record;

- (Checked appropriateness of the
accounting treatment and disclosures
related to correction of error and
presentation of third statement of
financial position in accordance with the
requirements of [AS-8 and IAS-1.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for other information. The other information comprises the
information in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We ha

nothing to report in this regard.

&
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they cquld reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. Q
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»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncerfainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concem.

« Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash
flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and
returns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were
for the purpose of the Company’s business; and le\
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¢) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980)
was deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under
section 7 of that Ordinance.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year eénded June 30, 2021 were audited by
another firm of chartered accountants who have expressed an unmodified opinion in their report
dated September 21, 2021,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting i1 this independent auditor’s report is Inam ul
Hague.

ééﬁm 4‘4 Z‘ Marmada E
RSM AVAIL LIAQUAA NAUMAN
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANS

Place: Lahore
Date: ﬂg SEP 022
UDIN: AR202210226KewkmTxYS
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Statement of Financial Position

as at 30 June 2022

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties

Long term security deposits
Deferred tax asset

CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock in trade

Trade receivables - unsecured & considered good

Advances, deposits and other receivables
Other financial assets

Tax refunds due from government - income tax

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorised share capital

35,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each.

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
Capital reserves

Share premium

Surplus on revaluation of land
Revenue reserves

General reserve

Unappropriated profit / (Accumulated loss)

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred liabilities

Long-term borrowings

Staff retirement gratuity

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Current portion of long-term borrowings
Short-term borrowings

Accrued markup on borrowings
Unclaimed dividend

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Total equity and liabilities

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
*Restatement relates to rectification of error related to deferred taxation (Refer Note 7.2.).

Nooruddin Feerasta
Chief Executive Officer

Note

o1

oo

10

11

12

13
14

15

16

17

18

Zeesh
Director

2022 || 2021 2020
(Rupees in ‘000"
*(Restated) *(Restated)

6,910,027 3,089,935 3,082,353
602,000 602,000 567,500
4,281 4,281 4,281
252,413 934 141,074
7,768,721 3,697,150 3,795,208
1,222,161 1,025,135 1,264,934
1,908,503 1,365,309 1,042,770
6,184 24 984
483,967 338,433 275,986
- - 143,000
39,853 46,697 72,106
94,680 29,739 310,633
3,755,348 2,805,337 3,110,413
11,524,069 6,502,487 6,905,621
350,000 350,000 350,000
340,685 340,685 340,685
71,490 71,490 71,490
5,697,866 1,719,056 1,719,056
1,664,125 1664,125 1664,125
23,414 (658,049) (950,171)
7,797,580 3,137,307 2,845,185
- - 94,369
218,656 181,349 169,000
218,656 181,349 263,369
2,642,501 1,431,050 852,044
- 94,369 47,185
857,363 1,636,763 2,837,449
4,753 19,908 58,634
3,216 1,741 1,755
3,507,833 3,183,831 3,797,067
11,524,069 6,502,487 6,905,621

Muhammad Ahsan Igbal
Chief Financial Officer




Statement of Profit or Loss
for the year ended 30 June 2022
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Note [ 2022 || 2021 |
(Rupees in ‘000")
*(Restated)

Sales - net 19 11,229,275 7,554,429
Cost of sales 20 10,035,836 6,710,396
Gross profit 1,193,439 844,033
Other income 21 73,443 80,805
1,266,882 924,838

Distribution costs 22 26,298 23,162
Administrative expenses 23 194,472 159,864
Finance costs 24 72,210 139,086
Other operating expenses 25 108,171 56,690
401,151 378,802

Profit for the year before taxation 865,731 546,036
Provision for taxation 26 4,639 253,971
Profit for the year 861,092 292,065

| 2022 || 2021 |
(Rupees)
*(Restated)
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 27 25.27 8.57

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
*Restatement relates to rectification of error related to deferred taxation (Refer Note 7.2.).

=

Nooruddin Feerasta Zeeshan Feerasta
Chief Executive Officer Director

-

Muhammad Ahsan Igbal
Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of retirement benefit obligations 15.1
Deferred tax relating to staff retirement gratuity 7
Surplus on revaluation of
freehold land carried out during the year 14

Total comprehensive income for the year

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

| 2022 || 2021 |
(Rupees in ‘000"

*(Restated)

861,092 292,065

(13,079) 80

3,793 (23)

3,978,810 -

3,969,524 57

4,830,616 292,122

*Restatement relates to rectification of error related to deferred taxation (Refer Note 7.2.).

& 7

Nooruddin Feerasta Zeeshan Feerasta
Chief Executive Officer Director

K-

Muhammad Ahsan

Igbal

Chief Financial Officer
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56  Rupali Polyester Limited

Statement of Cash Flow
for the year ended 30 June 2022

A) Cash flow from operating activities
Profit for the year before taxation

Adjustments for:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Loss on remeasurement of fair value of investment property
Provision for staff retirement benefits
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Interest income
Finance cost

Cash flow before working capital changes
Working capital changes
(Increase) / decrease in current assets:
Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock in trade
Trade receivables
Advances, deposits and receivables

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities:
Trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid
Staff retirement benefits paid
Finance cost paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

B) Cash flows from investing activities
Additions in property, plant and equipment
Loan given to related parties
Interest income received
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities

C) Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of long-term borrowings
Dividend paid
Short-term borrowings paid - net
Net cash (used in) financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

®

Nooruddin Feerasta Zeeshan Feerasta
Chief Executive Officer Director

Note | 2022 ||

2021

(Rupees in ‘000’)

865,731 546,036
153,131 159,668

- (34,500)

41,046 32,029

- (1,965)

(7,809) (3,457)
72,210 139,086
258,578 290,861
1,124,309 836,897
(197,026) 239,799
(543,194) (322,539)
(6,160) 960
(145,534) (62,447)
1,211,451 579,006
319,537 434,779
1,443,846 1,271,676
(245,481) (88,445)
(16,818) (19,600)
(87,365) (177,812)
1,094,182 985,819
5,587 (167,905)

- 143,000

7,809 3,457

- 2,620

13,396 (18,828)
(94,369) (47,185)
(168,868) (14)
(779,400)  (1,200,686)
(1,042,637)  (1,247,885)
64,941 (280,894)
29,739 310,633
94,680 29,739

-

Muhammad Ahsan Igbal
Chief Financial Officer
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

1

Status and nature of business

Rupali Polyester Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on 24 May 1980 as a Public Limited
Company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and is listed on
Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Company is principally engaged in manufacture and sale of polyester
products. The registered office is located at 241-242 Upper Mall Scheme, Anand Road, Lahore, in the
province of Punjab and regional office is situated at 1st Floor, Gul Tower, |.I Chundrigar Road, Karachi,
in the province of Sindh. The manufacturing facility is situated at 30.2 KM Lahore - Sheikhupura Road,
Sheikhupura, in the province of Punjab.

Basis of preparation

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
certain items as disclosed in the relevant accounting policies.

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017. Approved
accounting standards comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) as issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan (ICAP); and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS or
IFAS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Functional and presentational currency
These financial statements have been prepared in Pakistani Rupees, which is the company’s
functional and presentational currency.

Use of judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires
the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions and judgments are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of
making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision effects only
that period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

The areas involving a high degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements, are documented in the following accounting
policies and notes, and relate primarily to:
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Policy Note

- Useful lives, residual values and

depreciation method of property, plant and equipment 4.1
- Fair value of freehold land and investment property 4.1&4.3
- Impairment loss of non-financial assets other than inventories 4.2
- Provision for diminution in value of

‘stores, spares and loose tools’ and ‘stock in trade’ 44845
- Provision for expected credit losses 46.4
- Staff retirement benefits 413
- Provision for current and deferred taxation 4.20
- Revenue from contracts with customers 4.21

3 Standards, amendments and interpretations

3.1 Standards, amendments to standards and interpretations becoming effective in current year
The following standards, amendments to standards and interpretations have been effective and are
mandatory for financial statements of the Company for the periods beginning on or after July 01,
2021 and therefore, have been applied in preparing these financial statements.

i. "IFRS 4 — Insurance Contracts, IFRS 7 — Financial Instruments: Disclosures,
IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments,
IFRS 16 — Leases and IAS 39 — Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”

The IASB has published ‘Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 with amendments that
address issues that might affect financial reporting after the reform of an interest rate benchmark,
including its replacement with alternative benchmark rates.

Application of these amendments did not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

i. IFRS 16 - Leases
The |ASB has published ‘Covid-19 - Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021
(Amendment to IFRS 16)’ that extends, by one year, the May 2020 amendment that provides
lessees with an exemption from assessing whether a COVID-19-related rent concession is a
lease modification.

Application of these amendments did not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

3.2 Standards, amendments to standards and interpretations becoming effective in the current year but
not relevant

There are certain new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations that became
effective during the year and are mandatory for accounting periods of the Company beginning on
or after July 01, 2021 but are considered not to be relevant to the Company’s operations and are,
therefore, not disclosed in these financial statements.

3.3 Standards, amendments to standards and interpretations becoming effective in future periods
The following standards, amendments to standards and interpretations have been published and

are mandatory for the Company’s accounting periods beginning on or after the effective dates
specified therein.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018—2020 Cycle
The IASB has issued ‘Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020’. The pronouncement
contains amendments to the following Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

- IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Fees in the ‘10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial
liabilities. The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 per
cent’ test in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. An entity includes only
fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the entity or the lender on the other’s behalf.

- |AS 41 Agriculture - The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of 1AS 41 for
entities to exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using
a present value technique. This will ensure consistency with the requirements in IFRS 13.

The amendments are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
Application of these amendments is not expected to have any significant impact on the
Company’s financial statements.

IAS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements

The IASB has issued ‘Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS
Practice Statement 2)’ with amendments that are intended to help preparers in deciding which
accounting policies to disclose in their financial statements in the following ways:

- an entity is now required to disclose its material accounting policy information instead of its
significant accounting policies;

- several paragraphs are added to explain how an entity can identify material accounting policy
information and to give examples of when accounting policy information is likely to be
material;

- the amendments clarify that accounting policy information may be material because of its
nature, even if the related amounts are immaterial;

- the amendments clarify that accounting policy information is material if users of an entity’s
financial statements would need it to understand other material information in the financial
statements; and

- the amendments clarify that if an entity discloses immaterial accounting policy information,
such information shall not obscure material accounting policy information.

In addition, IFRS Practice Statement 2 has been amended by adding guidance and examples
to explain and demonstrate the application of the ‘four-step materiality process’ to accounting
policy information in order to support the amendments to IAS 1. Once the entity applies the
amendments to IAS 1, it is also permitted to apply the amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2.

The amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
The amendments are expected to affect disclosure of policies in the financial statements.

iii. IAS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The IASB has published ‘Definition of Accounting Estimates’ to help entities to distinguish
between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in accounting
estimates is replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition,
accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty”.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

The IASB clarifies that a change in accounting estimate that results from new information or new
developments is not the correction of an error. In addition, the effects of a change in an input or
a measurement technique used to develop an accounting estimate are changes in accounting
estimates if they do not result from the correction of prior period errors.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. Application
of these amendments is not expected to have any significant impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

iv. IAS 12 — Income Taxes

The IASB has published ‘Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12)’ that clarify how companies account for deferred tax on
transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. Accordingly, the initial recognition
exemption, provided in IAS 12.15(b) and IAS 12.24, does not apply to transactions in which
equal amounts of deductible and taxable temporary differences arise on initial recognition. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

Application of these amendments is not expected to have any significantimpact on the Company’s
financial statements.

v. IAS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment

The IASB has published ‘Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use
(Amendments to IAS 16)’ from selling items produced while bringing an asset into the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

The standard to prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of producing those items,
in profit or loss. An entity applies the amendments retrospectively only to items of property, plant
and equipment that are brought to the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management on or after the beginning of the earliest period
presented in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments.

The amendments are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
Application of these amendments is not expected to have any significant impact on the
Company’s financial statements.

vi. IAS 37 — Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The IASB has published ‘Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract’ amending the
standard regarding costs a company should include as the cost of fulfilling a contract when
assessing whether a contract is onerous.

The changes in Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract specify that the ‘cost of
fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate
directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would
be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts
(an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and
equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

The amendments published today are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022. Application of these amendments is not expected to have any significant impact
on the Company’s financial statements.
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3.4

3.5

Standards, amendments to standards and interpretations becoming effective in future periods but
not relevant

There are certain new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations that are effective
from different future periods as specified therein, but are considered not to be relevant to the
Company’s operations, therefore, not disclosed in these financial statements.

Standards issued by IASB but not applicable in Pakistan

Following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the
purpose of applicability in Pakistan:

IFRS 1 - First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts

4 Summary of significant accounting policies
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below:

4.1

Property, plant and equipment

Owned assets

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any, except for freehold land, which is stated at revalued amount. Costincludes expenditures
directly attributable to the acquisition of an asset.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is charged on reducing balance method at the rates
stated in Note 5 to these financial statements. Depreciation charge commences from the month in
which asset is available for use and no depreciation is charged during the month of disposal.

Residual values and the useful lives are reviewed at each date of statement of financial position and
adjusted if expectations differ significantly from previous estimates. Normal repairs and maintenance
are charged to profit or loss as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements, if any, are
capitalised, when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount of the relevant assets and are recognized in statement
of profit or loss.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of an item of property, plant and equipment
is recognised in other comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity
as “Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment”, except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the
increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decrease
in carrying amount arising on revaluation of an item of Property, plant and equipment is charged
to profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the revaluation surplus on
property, plant and equipment relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. In case of the sale
or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the surplus on
revaluation is transferred directly to the accumulated loss. The revaluation reserve is not available
for distribution to the Company’s shareholders.
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4.2

4.3

44

Capital work in progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated to the reporting date less impairment losses,
if any. It consists of expenditure incurred, advances made and other directly attributable costs
in respect of property, plant and equipment in the course of their construction and installation.
Transfers are made to relevant operating fixed assets category as and when assets are available
for use.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain
whether there is any indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. An impairment loss is
recognised, as an expense in the profit and loss account. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less cost to disposal and value in use. Value in use is ascertained through
discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets for which the
estimate of future cash flows have not been adjusted. For the purpose of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units).

Animpairment loss is reversed if there is a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization,
if no impairment loss had been recognised previously. Reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including
property under construction for such purposes), is measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured at fair value. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are included in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period
in which the property is derecognised.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property because its use
has changed, any difference between the carrying amount and fair value of this item at the date
of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation reserve for investment property. However, if
fair value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the profit and loss
account. Upon the disposal of such investment property, any surplus previously recorded in equity
is transferred to retained earnings, the transfer is not made through statement of profit or loss.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied or stock-in-trade, it is reclassified as property,
plant and equipment or stock-in-trade and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its
cost for accounting purpose for subsequent recording.

Stores, spares and loose tools

These are valued at lower of cost, using Weighted Average Cost method, and estimated net
realisable value. Provision is made for slow moving and obsolete stores and spares. Items in transit
are valued at cost comprising invoice values plus other charges incurred thereon.

Net realisable value specifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated cost of completion and cost necessarily to be incurred to make the sale.
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4.5 Stock in trade
All stocks are stated at lower of cost and estimated net realizable value. Cost is determined as

4.6.

follow:
Stock Type Valuation Method
Raw material Weighted average cost
Work in process Average manufacturing cost including appropriate overheads
Finished goods Average manufacturing cost including appropriate overheads
Stock in transit Cost comprising invoice value plus other expenses paid thereon
Waste/Scrap Net realizable value

Cost comprises all costs of purchase, conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition.

Average manufacturing cost in relation to work in process and finished goods consists of direct
material, labour and a proportion of appropriate manufacturing overheads.

Net realisable value is determined on the basis of estimated selling price of the product in the
ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to be incurred for its sale.

Financial instruments

4.6.1

Measurement of financial asset

Initial measurement

The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:
- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

- fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

- measured at amortized cost.

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition, except FVTPL which is measured at fair value.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification, as
follows:

Debt Investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized
in other comprehensive income. Interest / markup income calculated using the effective
interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in
the statement of profit or loss. On de-recognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Equity Investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized
in other comprehensive income and are never reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
Dividends are recognized as income in the statement of profit or loss unless the dividend
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

Financial assets at FVTPL
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest markup or dividend income, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
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Financial assets measured at amortized cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest / markup income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the statement of profit

or loss.
Non-derivative financial assets

All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognized on trade date i.e. date on which the
Company becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial
assets comprise loans and receivables that are financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in active markets and includes trade debts, advances, other

receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

Derecognition

The Company derecognizes the financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the assets expire or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in
a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retain substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred assets.

4.6.2 Financial liabilities
Initial recognition
Financial liabilities are classified in the following categories:
- fair value through profit or loss; and
- other financial liabilities.

The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in case of other financial

liabilities also include directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as

follows:
Fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held-for-
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as being at fair value
through profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability upon

recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss.
Other financial liabilities

After initial recognition, other financial liabilities which are interest bearing are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Gain and losses are
recognized in statement of profit or loss, when the liabilities are derecognized as well as

through effective interest rate amortization process.
Derecognition

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when and only when the Company’s

obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.

4.6.3 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
financial statements only when the Company has currently legally enforceable right to set-
off the recognized amounts and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis or
to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or winding up of the Company or the

counter parties.
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4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.6.4 Impairment of financial assets
The Company recognizes loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) in respect of
financial assets measured at amortized cost. The Company measures loss allowances at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are measured at 12-month
ECLs:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balance for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default
occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort.
This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-
looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly
if it is more than past due for a reasonable period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs
that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible
within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk. Loss
allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off
when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering of a financial asset in its
entirety or a portion thereof. The Company individually makes an assessment with respect
to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation
of recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery from the amount written off.
However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities
in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Trade debts

Trade debts are amounts due from customers for sales made during the ordinary course of business.
Trade debts and other receivables are recognized initially at invoice value, which approximates
fair value, and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method less
expected credit losses. Bad debt are written off when identified.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose
of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, current accounts,
deposit accounts and foreign currency accounts.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
company by weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
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412

4.13

414
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Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting basic EPS with weighted average number of ordinary shares
that would be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares and
post-tax effect of changes in profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company that
would result from conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Exchange gains and losses arising on translation
in respect of liabilities in foreign currency are added to the carrying amount of the respective
liabilities.

Contract balances

4.12.1 Contract assets
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred
to the customer when that right is conditioned on something other than the passage of time.
Upon receipt of such certification from a customer, the amount recognised as contract assets
is reclassified to trade receivables. Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment
on the same basis as financial assets . (Refer note 4.6.4)

4.12.2 Contract liabilities
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer property to a customer for which the Company
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.
Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the
contract (i.e. transfers control of the related property to the customer).

Staff retirement benefits

4.13.1 Defined benefit plan - Gratuity
The Company operates an unapproved unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan for all
employees having a service period of more than one year for workers and two years for
other employees. Provisions are made in the financial statements to cover obligations
on the basis of actuarial valuations carried out on a periodic basis or when these is a
significant change. The most recent valuation was carried out as at June 30, 2021 using
the “Projected Unit Credit Method”.
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the year
in which they arise. Past service costs are recognized immediately to profit or loss.

4.13.2 Defined contribution plan - Provident fund
The Company operates an approved provident fund scheme which covers all permanent
employees. Equal monthly contributions are made by the Company and employees.
Contribution is made by the Company at the rate of 8.33 % of basic salary.

Compensated absences
The Company accounts for compensated absences in the accounting period in which these are
earned.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated
into Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the statement of financial position date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses on translation are recognised in statement of profit or loss. All
non-monetary items are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing on the date of
transaction or on the date when fair values are determined.
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4.16
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4.18

4.19

4.20

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred except where
such costs are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset in which such costs are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events and, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is disclosed when there is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or when there is present
obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

Related party transactions and transfer pricing

Transactions with related parties are carried at arm’s length on price determined using the comparable
uncontrolled price method except for those transactions which, in exceptional circumstances, are
specifically approved by the Board.

Taxation

Current:
Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking
into account applicable tax credits, rebates and exemptions, if any.

Deferred:

Deferred tax is recognized using the liability method, on all temporary differences arising at the
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forwarded unused tax losses and tax
credits, if any, to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset may be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be realized. Unrecognized deferred tax asset are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow deferred tax asset to be realized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
periods when the asset is expected to be utilized or the liability is expected to be settled, based on
the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except in case of items credited or charged to
equity in which case it is included in equity.
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4.21

4.22

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company is expected
to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. For this purpose, the
Company:

identifies the contract with a customer;
identifies the performance obligations in the contract;

determines the transaction price which takes into account estimates of variable consideration, if
any, and the time value of money;

allocates the transaction price to the separate performance obligations, if applicable, on the basis
of the relative stand-alone selling price of each distinct good or service to be delivered; and

recognizes revenue when or as each performance obligation is satisfied in a manner that depicts
the transfer of control of the goods or services promised to the customer.

Determining the timing of the transfer of control — at a point in time or over time — requires
judgment. Revenue is recognized by the Company on the following basis:

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of goods is transferred
to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods. The control is transferred to the customer, generally, on
delivery of goods which coincides with issuance of invoice to the customer.

Interest income recognised on a time proportion basis on the principal amount outstanding and
at the applicable rate.

Divided income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.

Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Note | 2022 || 2021 |
(Rupees in ‘000"

5 Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed assets - owned 5.1 6,892,033 2,942,229
Capital work-in-progress - 39,045
Stores held for capital expenditure 17,994 108,661

6,910,027 3,089,935
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5.1.1

5.1.2

5.1.3

The fair value of the Company’s freehold land is determined periodically by an independent valuer.
The latest revaluation exercise was carried out as on April 11, 2022 (2021: in financial year 2017) by
independent valuer M/s Hamid Mukhtar & Co. (Pvt.) Limited. The fair value was determined under
‘Fair Value Hierarchy — Level 2’ based on the market comparable approach that reflects recent
transaction prices for similar properties. Forced sale value of land was determined at Rs. 4,340.54
million (2021: 1,157.47 million). Had there been no revaluation carrying value of land would have
been Rs. 21.172 million (2021: Rs. 21.172 million).

The land on which the Company’s office building has been constructed is in the name of a close
relative of directors of the Company. The land has been provided to the Company free of cost for a
period of 30 years ending on April 2034.

The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Note | 2022 || 2021 |
(Rupees in ‘000")

Cost of sales 20 135,736 142,548
Distribution costs 22 870 856
Administrative expenses 23 16,525 16,264
153,131 159,668
5.1.4 Particulars of immoveable properties of the Company are as follows:
Address Total area
(sq.ft)
Production plant at 30.2 km Lahore - Sheikhupura Road, Sheikhupura 5,252,029
Office building at 1st Floor, Gul Tower, I.I Chundrigar Road, Karachi 2,439
Note | 2022 || 2021 |

6.2

(Rupees in ‘000"

6 Investment properties
Land
Opening balance 602,000 567,500
Fair value gain recognized during the year - 34,500
Closing balance 6.1&6.2 602,000 602,000
6.1 The fair value of the investment property is determined by an independent valuer, M/s Hamid

Mukhtar & Co. (Pvt.) Limited (2021: Masood Associates (Private) Limited), on June 30, 2022 (2021:
June 30, 2021). There was no significant change in the fair value as at June 30, 2022. The fair value
has been determined under ‘Fair Value Hierarchy — Level 2’ based on the market comparable
approach that reflects recent transaction prices for similar properties. Forced sale value of land has
been determined at Rs. 510 million (2021: 511.7 million).

The land is located at property number S.42 - R/3/1, Race Course Road, Lahore measuring 27,225
Sq. ft.
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Note | 2022 || 2021 |
(Rupees in ‘000"

7 Deferred tax asset

Opening balance 934 141,074

(Provision) / reversal during the year through:
statement of profit or loss 247,686 (140,117)
other comprehensive income 3,793 (23)
7.1 252,413 934

7.1 It comprises of the following:
Taxable temporary differences in respect of;

Difference in accounting and tax bases of

property, plant and equipment (242,793) (250,556)

Deductible temporary differences in respect of;
Provision for gratuity 63,410 52,591
Tax losses carried forward 54,206 198,899
Minimum tax credit u/s 113 377,590 -
252,413 934

7.2  Deferred tax in respect of certain deductible temporary differences was not considered / accounted
for, and deferred tax liability was recorded in respect of taxable temporary differences due to
misapplication of accounting policy. The error has been corrected retrospectively and comparative
information has been restated in accordance with the requirements of IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies,
Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors’. The effect of correction of error related to reported
prior periods is as under:

| 2021 || 2020 |
(Rupees in ‘000°)
Increase / (Decrease)

Effect on statement of financial position

Assets

Deferred tax asset 934 141,074
Liabilities

Deferred tax liability (250,502) (271,509)
Equity

(Accumulated loss) (251,436) (412,583)

Effect on statement of profit or loss

Provision for taxation 161,147
Profit for the year (161,147)
Earnings per share - basic and diluted (4.73)
| 2022 || 2021 |

(Rupees in ‘000

8 Stores, spares and loose tools

Stores 174,000 132,353
Spares 1,041,450 886,202
Loose tools 6,711 6,580

1,222,161 1,025,135
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Note | 2022 || 2021 |
(Rupees in ‘000"

9 Stock in trade

Raw and packing materials 768,090 383,641
Stock in transit 5,679 14,603
Work-in-process 70,373 43,221
Finished goods 9.1 1,064,361 923,844

1,908,503 1,365,309

9.1 ltinclude stock of Rs. 91.41 million (2021: Rs. 0.55 million)
carried at net realizable value.

10 Advances, deposits and other receivables

Considered good
Advances to employees
against salary 10.1 492 258
against expenses 279 145
Advances to suppliers 143,632 12,883
Advances to related parties 10.2 39 62,482
Sales tax refundable 315,136 239,985
Other receivables 24,389 22,680

483,967 338,433

10.1 Loans have been granted under staff loan policy, as temporary financial assistance, to staff. These
are secured against the gratuity payable to employees and are recoverable in 12 equal monthly
installments. These loans carry mark-up at the rate of 20% per annum (2021: 14% per annum).

10.2 These represent payments against purchases and expenses made on behalf of related parties.
These are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. The detail is as follows:

Maximum aggregate amount
| 2022 || 2021 || 2022 || 2021 |
(Rupees in ‘000°)

Spintex Limited 42,334 42,342 - 41,886
Rupafil Limited 8,042 20,565 8 20,565
Rupafil PowerGen (Pvt.) Limited 31 31 31 31
50,407 62,938 39 62,482

Note | 2022 || 2021 |

(Rupees in ‘000"

11 Cash and bank balances

Cash in hand 87 75
Balance with banks

Current accounts 58,307 1,585

Deposit accounts 11.1 36,286 28,079

94,593 29,664

94,680 29,739

11.1 These carry mark-up ranging from 5.5 % to 15.0 % per annum (2021 : 5.5 % to 7.25 % per
annum).
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12

13

14

15

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

| 2022 | | 2021 |
(Number of shares in ‘000)

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

9,691 9,691 Fully paid in cash

19,934 19,934 Fully paid other than in cash(Note 12.1)
4,444 4,444 Allotted as bonus shares

34,069 34,069

12.1 These shares were issued against non-repatriable investment.

12.2 Detail of shares held by associated entities are as follows:

| 2022 || 2021 |
(Number of shares in ‘000)

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

18,416 18,416 Feerasta Senior Trust - Parent entity
9,194 9,194 ALNU Trust - Associate
27,610 27,610
SHARE PREMIUM

Share premium

2022 | | 2021 |

(Rupees in ‘000’

96,909 96,909
199,339 199,339
44 437 44 437
340,685 340,685
2022 | | 2021 |

(Rupees in ‘000’

184,160 184,160
91,940 91,940
276,100 276,100
71,490 71,490

2022 || 2021 |

(Rupees in ‘000")

13.1 The share premium can be utilized in accordance with provisions of section 81 of the Companies
Act, 2017.
Note
Surplus on revaluation of land
Balance at the beginning of the year
Surplus on revaluation of freehold land
Balance at the end of the year 141

14.1  This includes surplus of Rs: 251.044 million

(2021: Rs: 251.044 million) related to revaluation of a land,
which was subsequently classified as Investment Property.

Staff retirement gratuity

The scheme provides terminal benefits for all the employees of
the Company who attain the minimum qualifying period. Annual
charge is based on actuarial valuation carried out as at

June 30, 2022 using Projected Unit Credit Method.

Present value of defined benefit obligation 15.1

1,719,056 1,719,056

3,978,810 -

5,697,866 1,719,056
218,656 181,349
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15.1

15.2

15.3

15.4

Note |

2022

|| 2021 |

(Rupees in ‘000°)

Present value of defined benefit obligation

Present value of defined benefit obligation at beginning 181,349 169,000
Expenses recognized in profit and loss 15.2 41,046 32,029
Benefits paid during the year (16,818) (19,600)
Remeasurement (gain) / loss on defined benefit obligation
recognized in statement of comprehensive income 13,079 (80)
218,656 181,349
Amount recognised in profit or loss
Current service cost 23,752 18,497
Interest cost 17,294 13,532
41,046 32,029
Principal actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial valuations
Most recent actuarial valuation was carried out as on
June 30, 2022. The principal actuarial assumptions used
in the valuation are given below:
| 2022 || 2021 |
Financial assumptions
Discount rate 13.25% 10%
Expected rate of eligible salary increase in future years 12.25% 9%
Demographic assumptions
Mortality rate SLIC (2001-05) SLIC (2001-05)
Retirement assumptions Age 60 Age 60
Change in assumptions
Increase Decrease
+100 bps -100 bps

(Rupees in ‘000"

Sensitivity analysis

Year end sensitivity analysis on obligations
Discount rate

Salary increase rate

210,122
227,538

227,532
210,125

The above sensitivity analysis is based on change in an assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions
may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant
actuarial assumptions, the same method (Projected Unit Credit Method) has been applied as for

calculating the liability of gratuity.

Note | 2022 || 2021 |
(Rupees in ‘000")
16 Trade and other payables

Trade payables 2,265,939 1,147,267
Accrued liabilities 156,496 111,072
Worker’s profit participation fund 16.1 77,607 45,904
Worker’s welfare fund 16.2 21,734 15,376
Advance from customers 16.3 39,845 10,829
Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) payable 16.4 61,338 65,824
Sales tax payable 9,337 24,697
Withholding tax payables 576 495
Retention money 838 957
Provident fund payable 642 312
Others 16.5 8,149 8,317

2,642,501 1,431,050
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17

Note | 2022 || 2021 |
(Rupees in ‘000"

16.1 Workers’ profit participation fund

Balance at the beginning of the year 45,904 17,311
Add: Charge for the year
Provision for the year 43,945 33,624
Interest on funds utitlized by the Company 13,159 -
57,104 33,624
Less: Paid during the year (25,401) (5,031)
Balance at the end of the year 77,607 45,904
16.2 Worker’s welfare fund
Balance at the beginning of the year 15,376 4,732
Add: Charge for the year 17,315 12,777
Less: Paid during the year (10,957) (2,133)
Balance at the end of the year 21,734 15,376

16.3 Reconciliation of advances from customers is set out as below:

Opening balance 10,829 25,888
Payments received in advance 39,845 10,829
Transfer to revenue - included in the opening balance (10,829) (25,888)

39,845 10,829

16.4 The payment has been suspended during the period
owing to stay granted by the Honorable Sindh High Court.

16.5 This includes Rs. 11,186/- (2021: Nil) payable to an associate
against expenses incurred on behalf of the Company.

Short-term borrowings
For banking companies - under markup arrangements
Running finances 17.1 471,244 1,053,644
From associates - unsecured 17.2 386,119 583,119
857,363 1,636,763

17.1 The aggregate finance facilities available from various commercial banks amounted to Rs. 2,815.24
million (2021: Rs. 1,681.24 million). These carry mark-up at the rates ranging from 7.65% to 14.81%
per annum (2021: 7.65% to 8.59% per annum) and are secured against hypothecation charge
on current assets and promissory notes, respectively. Markup is payable on quarterly basis in
arrears.

17.2 The loan was obtained to meet working capital requirements and has been utilized accordingly. The
loan is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

17.3 Total unfund, facilities financing for opening letters of credit from various commercial banks available
to the Company were Rs. 3,450 million (2021: Rs. 2,150 million) of which facilities of Rs. 585.06
million (2021: Rs. 921.31 million) were un-utilized at the year end.
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18 Contingencies and commitments

19

Contingencies:

a.

Commitments

Sales tax demand of Rs. 3.11 million (2021: Rs. 3.11 million) not acknowledged in view of pending
appeal before Supreme court of Pakistan against the order of Honorable Lahore high court by Additional
Collector Sales Tax. The demand was created by charging output tax on certain items and disallowing
input tax on purchase of certain items. Case filed with Lahore High Court was dismissed on technical
grounds without addressing the merits. The proceedings are still pending.

The supplies made by the Company to its customers in Azad Jammu and Kashmir (AJ&K), during the
period from November, 1997 to June, 1998, were treated as exports being zero rated u/s-4 of the Sales
Tax Act, 1990. However, the Deputy Collector (Refund) on 27.06.2001 adjudged that as the appellant
has not followed the procedure described u/s-131 of the Custom Act, 1969 so the supplies made to
AJ&K from Pakistan cannot be treated as exports being zero rated u/s-4 ibid. The amount of impugned
sales tax demand is Rs. 19.40 million (2021: Rs. 19.40 million) which was already deposited by the
Company under protest. The proceedings of the said case are still pending in Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue (ATIR), Lahore.

A Goods Declaration of Import was claimed repeatedly due to duplication of data by customs
authorities. The Deputy Commissioner, Large Taxpayers Office, Lahore, charged 100% penalty and
default surcharge amounting to Rs. 1.82 million on 03.12.2020. The Commissioner Inland Revenue
Appeals, Lahore reduced the demand by 95% on 25.06.2022. The Company has filed an appeal on
16.07.2021 before ATIR against remaining 5% demand amount which is still pending.

The Company was selected for audit and an order was passed against the Company which was
challenged before different appellate forums. The tax demand of Rs. 9.64 million (2021: Rs. 9.64
million) was adjusted by the tax department against refund of tax year 2010. The appeal filed with
Supreme court of Pakistan was accepted except certain points. A review petition against rejected
points is also filed before the Apex Court in May, 2021. Hearing of appeal is still pending before the
Apex.

Certain Ex-Employees of the Company have filed cases with the Authority under Payment of Wages
Act, 1936 claiming arrears/remuneration amounting to Rs. 3.258 million (2020: Rs. 2.507 million).

Bank guarantees issued in favour of Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited amounting to Rs. 82.209
million (2021: Rs. 120.125 million) for supply of gas.

| 2022 || 2021 |
(Rupees in ‘000")

- Commitments under irrevocable letters of credit 2,864,944 1,228,694

- Commitment under contract for capital expenditure 214,491 284,100

Sales - net

Sale of goods 13,199,493 8,884,365

Less: Sales tax (1,900,812) || (1,284,291)

Less: Trade discount (69,406) (45,645)
(1,970,218) (1,329,936)

11,229,275 7,554,429
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Note
20 Cost of sales
Raw and packing material consumed 201
Fuel and power
Salaries, wages and amenities 20.2
Stores and spares consumed
Depreciation of operating fixed assets 5.1.3

21

Repair and maintenance

Running and maintenance of vehicles
Insurance

Rent, rates and taxes

Others

Add:Opening Work-in-Process
Less:Closing Work-in-Process

Add:Opening Finished Goods
Less:Closing Finished Goods

20.1 Raw and packing material consumed
Opening raw and packing materials

Add: Purchases during the year
Less: Closing raw and packing materials

20.2 Salaries, wages and amenities include Rs. 29.486 million
(2021: Rs. 22.107 million) in respect of staff retirement
benefits and Rs. 1.07 million (2021: Rs 0.756 million) in
respect of provident fund contribution.

Other income

Income from financial assets
Interest income from banks
Mark-up income on staff loan

Income from non-financial assets

Sale of scrap - net of sales tax

Fair value gain on investment property
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets
Others
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| 2022 || 2021 |
(Rupees in ‘000°)
7,936,377 5,793,343
1,371,326 947,783
445,857 378,852
161,439 72,692
135,736 142,548
101,242 35,380
27,504 22,337
20,151 18,790
2,549 2,149
1,324 1,026
10,203,505 7,414,900
43,221 41,172
(70,373) (43,221)
(27,152) (2,049)
10,176,353 7,412,851
923,844 221,389
(1,064,361) (923,844)
(140,517) (702,455)
10,035,836 6,710,396
383,641 775,229
8,320,826 5,401,755
(768,090) (383,641)
7,936,377 5,793,343
7,763 3,420
46 37
7,809 3,457
65,614 40,882
- 34,500
- 1,965
20 1
65,634 77,348
73,443 80,805
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22

23

Note
Distribution costs
Freight and forwarding
Salaries, wages and other benefits 22.1
Depreciation of operating fixed assets 5.1.3

Printing and stationery
Travelling and conveyance
Utilities

General repair and maintenance
Vehicle running and maintenance
Entertainment

Rent, rates and taxes

Books and subscription

Sales promotion expenses
Communication

Insurance

22.1 Salaries, wages and amenities include Rs. 0.578 million
(2021: Rs. 0.522 million) in respect of staff retirement
benefits and Rs: 0.026 million (2021: Rs 0.024 million) in
respect of provident fund contribution.

Administrative expenses

Salaries, wages and other benefits 23.1
Depreciation of operating fixed assets 5.1.3
Travelling and conveyance

Entertainment

Legal and professional charges

Utilities

Printing and stationery

Vehicle running and maintenance

Rent, rates and taxes

General repair and maintenance

Communication

Fee and subscription

Auditors’ remuneration 23.2
Advertisement

Insurance

Miscellaneous expenses

2022

2021

(Rupees in ‘000"

16,356 15,066
6,771 5,998
870 856
257 106
339 170
310 259
155 162
176 104
464 91
186 183
102 43
182 -

79 77

51 47
26,298 23,162
128,658 115,304
16,525 16,264
6,447 3,224
8,818 1,725
6,606 3,327
5,891 4,925
4,878 2,022
3,350 1,972
3,531 3,486
2,935 3,087
1,509 1,471
1,938 812
1,610 650
452 266
970 897
354 432
194,472 159,864

23.1 Salaries, wages and amenities include Rs. 10.982 million (2021: Rs. 9.910 million) in respect of

staff retirement benefits and Rs. 0.488 million (2021: Rs. 0.450 million) in respect of provident fund

contribution.
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24

25

26

Note

23.2 Auditors’ remuneration
Annual audit fee
Certification and review
Out of pocket charges

Finance costs
Mark-up / interest on:

long-term financing

short-term borrowings

Workers’ profit participation fund
Bank charges

Other operating expenses

Donations 25.1
Workers’ welfare fund

Workers’ profit participation fund

Others

25.1 Donations along with name of donee are as follows:

Agha Khan Education Services
Agha Khan Development Network
Others
25.1.1

25.1.1 None of the directors and their spouses had any
interest in the donees.

Provision for taxation
Current tax

For the period

For prior period
Deferred tax

26.1 Relationship between accounting profit and tax expense

The relationship between tax expense and accounting profit has not been presented in these financial
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| 2022 || 2021 |
(Rupees in ‘000°)

1,050 525
420 85
140 40
1,610 650
3,802 11,081
52,155 120,976
13,159 -
3,094 7,029
72,210 139,086
43,090 10,289
17,315 12,777
43,945 33,624
3,821 -
108,171 56,690
38,000 10,000
5,000 -

90 289
43,090 10,289
251,712 113,317

613 537
(247,686) 140,117
4,639 253,971

statements as the income of the Company is subject to minimum tax / Alternate corporate tax. The

provision for current taxation is made under section 113 / 113C of the Income Tax Ordinance,

2001.
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27

28

| 2022 || 2021 |
Earnings per share - basic and diluted
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders (Rupees in ‘000’) 861,092 292,065
Weighted average number of
outstanding ordinary shares (Number in ‘000’) 34,069 34,069
Earning per share basic and diluted (Rupees) 25.27 8.57
271 There is no effect of dilution on basic earning per share of the Company.

| 2022 || 2021 |

(Rupees in ‘000"

Financial instruments
Financial assets - At amortized cost

Long term security deposits 4,281 4,281
Trade receivables 6,184 24
Advances, deposits and other receivables 24,389 22,680
Cash and bank balances 94,680 29,739
129,534 56,724
Financial liabilities - At amortized cost
Trade and other payables 2,431,422 1,267,613
Current portion of long-term borrowings - 94,369
Short-term borrowings 857,363 1,636,763
Accrued markup on borrowings 4,753 19,908
Unclaimed dividend 3,216 1,741

3,296,754 3,020,394

Fair values of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction in the principal market at the measurement date under current market conditions regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. As at the reporting
date, fair values of all financial instruments are considered to approximate their carrying amounts. Further,
there are no fair value estimation uncertainties.

Methods of determining fair values

Fair values of financial instruments for which prices are available from the active market are measured by
reference to those market prices. The fair value of financial assets (other than investments) and liabilities
with no active market are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis based on inputs from other than observable market.

Discount / interest rates used for determining fair values
The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows, when applicable, are based on the government
yield curve as at the reporting date plus an adequate credit spread.

Fair value hierarchy
The company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance
of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

Level 3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e., unobservable
inputs).
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29 Financial risk management objectives

Financial risk factors

81

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, other
price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse

effects on the financial performance.
Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors (the Board).

29.1 Market risk
29.1.1  Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly
from future commercial transactions in foreign currencies. The Company is exposed to
foreign currency exchange risk in respect of commitments against letters of credit in foreign
currency. The management does not view hedging as being financially feasible. The effect
of change in currency rate would be as follows for current year's commitments as at the

reporting date:

Increase / Effect on profit Effect on
(Decrease) before tax equity
in rate (Rupees in ‘000)
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
2022 +5% 7,524 5,342
-5% (7,524) (5,342)
2021 +5% 10,691 7,591
-5% (10,691) (7,591)

29.1.2 Other price risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from
interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific
to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial
instruments traded in the market. The Company is not exposed to equity price risk as it

does not have any exposure in equity securities.

29.1.3 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Borrowings obtained

at variable rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.

Atthe reporting date, the profit, interest and mark-up rate profile of the Company’s significant

financial assets and liabilities is as follows:
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Variable rate financial instruments
Financial assets
Balances with banks in deposit account

Financial liabilities

Current portion of long-term borrowings
Short term borrowings - running finance

Fair value sensitivity analysis

| 2022 || 2021

(Rupees in ‘000

36,286 28,079

= 94,369
471,244 1,053,644

471,244 1,148,013

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the reporting date would not

affect profit or loss of the Company.

Increase / Effect on profit Effect on
(Decrease) before tax equity
in rate (Rupees in ‘000)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis
Financial assets
2022 +1% 363 258
-1% (363) (258)
2021 +1% 281 197
1% (281) (197)
Financial liabilities
2022 +1% 4,712 3,346
-1% (4,712) (3,346)
2021 +1% 11,480 8,151
-1% (11,480) (8,151)

29.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to the financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any
collateral. Creditrisk arises from balances with banks, trade receivables, advances, deposits and other
receivables. The maximum exposure to credit risk before any credit enhancement is given below:

Maximum exposure to credit risk

Long term security deposits

Trade receivables

Advances, deposits and other receivables
Bank balances

The Company attempts to control the credit risk by monitoring credit exposure, limiting transactions

| 2022 || 2021

(Rupees in ‘000°)

4,281 4,281
6,184 24
24,389 22,680
94,593 29,664
129,447 56,649

with specific customers and continuing assessment of credit worthiness of customers.

Based on the past experience, record of recoveries, the Company believes that the past due amount

do not require any provision or impairment loss.

The credit risk exposure is limited in respect of bank balances as these are placed with the scheduled

banks having good credit rating from international and local credit rating agencies.
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29.3 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances and the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. As at June 30,
2022, the Company has borrowing limits available from financial institutions and Rs 94.59 million
(2021: Rs 29.66 million) in bank balances. The Company follows an effective cash management
and planning policy to ensure availability of funds and to take appropriate measures for new
requirements.

The Company is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of financial liabilities, set out in Note 28. These
liabilities are due to mature within one year from the reporting date.

30 Capital risk management
The company’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital are as follows:

To safeguard Company’s ability to continue as going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefit other stakeholders; and

To provide adequate return to shareholders by pricing the products and services commensurately with the
level of risk.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders or issue new shares. The capital structure of the Company consists of equity comprising
of issued share capital and unappropriated profits.

Consistent with others in the industry and the requirements of the lenders, the Company monitors the
capital structure on the basis of gearing ratio.

This ratio is calculated as debt divided by total capital. Debt is calculated as total borrowings. Total capital
is calculated as ‘equity’ shown in the statement of financial position. The gearing ratio as at year ended
June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021 are as follows:

[ 2022 ][ 2021 |
(Rupees in ‘000")

Debt 857,363 1,731,132
Total Equity 7,797,580 3,137,307
Gearing Ratio 11% 55%

The Company is not exposed to externally imposed capital requirements.
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31 Transactions with related parties

The related parties comprise of major shareholder, associated undertakings, provident fund and key
management personnel. Significant transactions with related parties are as follows:

Name of related parties and basis
of relationship

Nature of transactions

2022 || 2021

(Rupees in ‘000)

Soneri Bank Limited

Associated Company by virtue of common - Profit on bank deposits 7,763 3,420
directorship
2:§oaclila't\leyc:°:o(r:r2’: teli LI\Trltt:: of common  Furchase el 2,647
. . pany by - Payments 5,511 2,647
directorship
A - Purchases 1,548,741 665,920
2:spoacfigt:::im::t:n(:pany by virtue of common Sales pre 71,180
directorshi - Payments 1,548,741 686,484
P - Receipts 68,088 71,251
- Purchases 43,305 3,478
Spintex Limited - Sales 14 51
(MD is sibling of CEO of the Company) - Payments 43,294 3,478
- Receipts 41,900 73
Alnu Trust
Related party by virtue of major shareholding Repayment of loan IS0 i
Provident fund - 1,584 1,219

32 Remuneration to directors and executives

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for the year for remuneration, including certain
benefits, to the Chief Executive and full time working Directors and Executives of the Company are as

follows:

Managerial remuneration
House rent

Utilities

Medical allowance
Retirement benefits
Other benefits

Total number of persons

32.1

Executives

2022 | 2021

(Rupees in’000)

32,838 33,720
9,851 10,116
3,283 3,372
3,283 3,372

= 236

279 296
49,534 51,112
15 17

The Chief Executive Officer of the Company is provided with Company maintained car for business and

personal use. No meeting fee was paid to any directors for attending Board meetings during the year.
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33

34

35

36

37

38

2022 | 2021
Number of persons

Number of employees

Average number of employees for the year 1,364 1,367
Total number of employees at year end 1,349 1,389
2022 2021

Note Unaudited Audited
(Rupees in’000)

Employees provident fund

Size of the fund 23,451 23,844
Cost of investments made 23,205 23,527
Fair value of investment 34.1 23,205 23,527
Percentage of investment made 98.67% 98.67%

34.1 The funds are placed in saving account with a bank, which is related party of the Company, in
accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the Rules formulated
for this purpose.

2022 2021
Units in tons

Production Capacity
Annual capacity
Yarn 10,100 10,100
Fibre 12,000 12,000
Actual production
Yarn 11,402 13,292
Fibre 24,056 24,287

35.1 The annual capacity disclosed above is name plate capacity on a standard product specification
basis. It is a standardized nomenclature over the world that manufacturing plants have a certain
nameplate capacity. However, actual production capacity of a plant is always in excess of the
nameplate capacity owing to variation in specification of products being actually produced.

Non adjusting events after the reporting date

The Board of Directors in its Meeting held on September 09, 2022 proposed a cash dividend of Rs. 5.00
per share (2021: Rs. 5.00 per share) for the year ended June 30, 2022, amounting to Rs. 170.34 million
(2021: Rs. 170.34 million), for approval of the members at the Annual General Meeting to be held on
October 21, 2022.

Date of authorization for issue

These financial statements were authorized for issue on 9 September 2022 by the Board of Directors of
the Company.

General

38.1 Rearrangements

Prior year figures have been re-arranged wherever considered necessary for the purpose of better
comparison and presentation. Significant rearrangements made are as under;
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- Surplus on revaluation of land amounting to Rs. 5,697 million is included in the broader category of
capital reserves’ on the face of statement of financial position.

- Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) payable’ amounting to Rs. 61.34 million and ‘advance
from customers’ amounting to Rs. 39.85 million were disclosed as separate line item on the
face of statement of financial position. These are grouped under the head of ‘trade and other
payables’.

- loan from associates amounting to Rs. 386.12 million was shown as a separate line item on the face
of Statement of financial position. These are included in ‘short term borrowings’

38.2 Nomenclature
Nomenclature of different line items has been changed. Significant changes are as under;

Previous nomenclature | | Current nomenclature

Capital stores Stores held for capital expenditure
Inventories Stock in trade
Raw materials Raw and packing materials
Work in progress Work-in-process
Revaluation reserve Surplus on revaluation of land
Retained earning Unappropriated

profit / (Accumulated loss)
Contract liabilities Advance from customers
Payable to government authority Gas Infrastructure

Development Cess (GIDC) payable
Borrowings Long-term borrowings
Deferred liability - net staff gratuity Staff retirement gratuity
Revenue - net Sales - net
Cost of revenue Cost of sales
Taxation Provision for taxation

38.3 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand Rupees unless otherwise stated.

L= 7 -

Nooruddin Feerasta Zeeshan Feerasta Muhammad Ahsan Igbal
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer



Annual Report 2022 87

Pattern of Shareholding

as at 30 June 2022

Number of Shareholding Total
Shareholders From To Shares Held

195 1 100 5,805
121 101 - 500 42,376
88 501 - 1000 67,501
105 1001 - 5000 272,409
28 5001 - 10000 220,680
4 10001 - 15000 48,201

3 15001 - 20000 56,000

8 20001 - 25000 182,189

1 25001 - 30000 30,000

1 30001 - 35000 33,000

4 35001 - 40000 158,500

4 40001 - 45000 166,500

1 45001 - 50000 50,000

2 50001 - 55000 106,500

1 65001 - 70000 67,000

1 80001 - 85000 84,000

1 85001 - 90000 85,500

1 90001 - 95000 92,000

1 95001 - 100000 100,000

1 110001 - 115000 115,000

1 125001 - 130000 129,500

1 130001 - 135000 133,161

1 145001 - 150000 146,482

1 190001 - 195000 193,000

1 205001 - 210000 209,490

1 225001 - 230000 226,662

1 285001 - 290000 286,000

1 420001 - 425000 425,000

1 580001 - 585000 584,500

1 935001 - 940000 939,833

1 1200001 - 1205000 1,202,503

1 3830001 - 3835000 3,834,290

1 5355001 - 5360000 5,359,364

1 18415001 - 18420000 18,415,568

585 Total 34,068,514
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Categories of Shareholders Number Shares Held Percentage
Individuals 556 4,085,520 11.99
Joint Stock Companies 0 0 0.00
Investment Companies 0 0 0.00
Directors, Chief Executive Officer and

their Spouses and minor Children 9 1,057,993 3.09
Mr. Nooruddin Feerasta 500 0.00
Mr. Muhammad Rashid Zahir 500 0.00
Mrs. Amyna Feerasta 500 0.00
Mr. Shehzad Feerasta 490 0.00
Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta 10 0.00
Mr. Yasseen M. Sayani 939,833 2.76
Mr. Shahid Hameed 10 0.00
Mr. Abdul Hayee 1,150 0.00
Mrs. Laila Y. Sayani w/o Mr. Yaseen M. Sayani 115,000 0.34
Total: 1,057,993 3.09
Executives
National Bank of Pakistan, Trustee Depit. 5 930,022 2.73
Investment Corporation of Pakistan 1 200 0.00
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties
Public Sector Companies and Corporations
Banks, DFIs, NBFls, Insurance Companies, Modaraba &

Mutual Funds 11 385,557 1.13
Foreign Investors 0 0.00
Co-operative Societies 0 0.00
Trusts 3 27,609,222 81.04
Others
Total: 585 34,068,514 100.00

SHARE-HOLDERS HOLDING FIVE PERCENT OR MORE VOTING INTEREST IN THE COMPANY

Name of Shareholders No. of Shares Held Percentage
Trustees Feerasta Senior Trust 18,415,568 54.05
Trustees ALNU Trust 9,193,654 26.99
Total: 27,609,222 81.04

Trading in Shares During 2021-22:

Directors, CEO, CFO and Company Secretary made no sale/purchase of shares during the year.
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Pr0xy FOrm 42+ annual General Meeting

1/ We of

being member(s) of RUPALI POLYESTER LIMITED

and holder of Ordinary Shares

Register Folio No.

CDC participant I.D. No: Sub-Account No:

CNIC No: or Passport No:

hereby appoint of or failing him / her

of who is / are also member(s) of
RUPALI POLYESTER LIMITED as my / our proxy to attend and vote for me / on our behalf at the
42nd Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 21 October 2022 or at any adjournment
thereof.

(Signatures should agree with the
specimen signature registered
with the Company)

Revenue
Stamp

Dated this day of October 2022 Signature of Shareholder.

Signature of Proxy.

1. WITNESS 2. WITNESS
Signature: Signature:
Name: Name:
Address: Address:
CNIC No: CNIC No:

or Passport No:

IMPORTANT:

1.

or Passport No:

This Proxy Form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the Registered Office of the Company RUPALI
POLYESTER LIMITED, Rupali House, 241-242 Upper Mall Scheme, Anand Road, Lahore - 54000 not less than

48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.

2. No person shall act as proxy unless he / she himself / herself is a member of the Company, except that a
corporation may appoint a person who is not a member.

3. If amember appoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxy are deposited by a member
with the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid.

4. CDC Shareholders and their proxies should attach an attested photocopy of their Computerized National Identity
Card (CNIC) or Passport with the proxy form before submission to the Company. (Original CNIC / Passport is
required to be produced at the time of the meeting).

5. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of the

nominee shall be submitted along with proxy form to the Company.
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RUPALI POLYESTER LIMITED
Registered Office

Rupali House, 241 - 242 Upper Mall Scheme,
Anand Road, Lahore - 54000
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